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Executive Summary: 
 
1. As yet unidentified market participants with very likely CIA affiliations skimmed off 
billions of dollars through insider trading in certain derivatives (options) due to obvious 
and apparent foreknowledge of the events of 9-11. 
 
2. Larry Silverstein, a New York real estate magnate, gained several billion dollars 
through insurance coverage for the destroyed buildings of the World Trade Center. The 
entire nature of Silverstein’s jackpot transaction in the weeks before 9-11 is extremely 
suspicious, and it indicates clear and distinct foreknowledge of the events of 9-11. 
Moreover, it indicates foreknowledge of the fact that the government would falsify and 
suppress certain facts relating to the destruction of the World Trade Center on 9-11-1. 
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PART ONE: 9-11 INSIDER TRADING 
 
 

Source URL for the following article by Michael C. Ruppert: 
http://www.globalresearch.ca/articles/RUP110A.html

 
 

Suppressed Details of Criminal Insider 
Trading lead directly into the CIA`s Highest 

Ranks 
CIA Executive Director „Buzzy“ Krongard managed Firm 

that handled „put“ Options on UAL  
by Michael C. Ruppert  

FTW Publications, 9 October 2001  
Centre for Research on Globalisation, globalresearch.ca, 20 October 2001  
 

 

Although uniformly ignored by the mainstream U.S. media, there is abundant 
and clear evidence that a number of transactions in financial markets indicated 
specific (criminal) foreknowledge of the September 11 attacks on the World 
Trade Center and the Pentagon. That evidence also demonstrates that, in the case 
of at least one of these trades -- which has left a $2.5 million prize unclaimed -- 
the firm used to place the „put options“ on United Airlines stock was, until 1998, 
managed by the man who is now in the number three Executive Director position 
at the Central Intelligence Agency. Until 1997 A.B. „Buzzy“ Krongard had been 
Chairman of the investment bank A.B. Brown. A.B. Brown was acquired by 
Banker’s Trust in 1997. Krongard then became, as part of the merger, Vice 
Chairman of Banker’s Trust-AB Brown, one of 20 major U.S. banks named by 
Senator Carl Levin this year as being connected to money laundering. 
Krongard’s last position at Banker’s Trust (BT) was to oversee „private client 
relations.“ In this capacity he had direct hands-on relations with some of the 
wealthiest people in the world in a kind of specialized banking operation that has 
been identified by the U.S. Senate and other investigators as being closely 
connected to the laundering of drug money.  
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Krongard (re?) joined the CIA in 1998 as counsel to CIA Director George Tenet. He was 
promoted to CIA Executive Director by President Bush in March of this year. BT was acquired 
by Deutsche Bank in 1999. The combined firm is the single largest bank in Europe. And, as we 
shall see, Deutsche Bank played several key roles in events connected to the September 11 
attacks.  

The Scope of Known Insider Trading  
Before looking further into these relationships it is necessary to look at the insider trading 
information that is being ignored by Reuters, The New York Times and other mass media. It is 
well documented that the CIA has long monitored such trades - in real time - as potential 
warnings of terrorist attacks and other economic moves contrary to U.S. interests. Previous 
stories in FTW have specifically highlighted the use of Promis software to monitor such trades.  

It is necessary to understand only two key financial terms to understand the significance of these 
trades. „Selling Short“ is the borrowing of stock, selling it at current market prices, but not being 
required to actually produce the stock for some time. If the stock falls precipitously after the short 
contract is entered, the seller can then fulfill the contract by buying the stock after the price has 
fallen and complete the contract at the pre-crash price. These contracts often have a window of as 
long as four months. „Put Options,“ purchased at nominal prices of, for example, $1.00 per share, 
are sold in blocks of 100 shares. If exercised, they give the holder the option of selling selected 
stocks at a future date at a price set when the contract is issued. Thus, for an investment of 
$10,000 it might be possible to tie up 10,000 shares of United or American Airlines at $100 per 
share, and the seller of the option is then obligated to buy them if the option is executed. If the 
stock has fallen to $50 when the contract matures, the holder of the option can purchase the 
shares for $50 and immediately sell them for $100 - regardless of where the market then stands.  

A „call option“ is the reverse of a put option, which is, in effect, a derivatives bet that the stock 
price will go up.  

A September 21 story by the Israeli Herzliyya International Policy Institute for Counterterrorism, 
entitled „Black Tuesday: The World’s Largest Insider Trading Scam?“ documented the following 
trades connected to the September 11 attacks:  

• Between September 6 and 7, the Chicago Board Options Exchange saw purchases of 
4,744 put options on United Airlines, but only 396 call options... Assuming that 4,000 of 
the options were bought by people with advance knowledge of the imminent attacks, these 
„insiders“ would have profited by almost $5 million.  

• On September 10, 4,516 put options on American Airlines were bought on the Chicago 
exchange, compared to only 748 calls. Again, there was no news at that point to justify 
this imbalance;... Again, assuming that 4,000 of these options trades represent „insiders,“ 
they would represent a gain of about $4 million.  
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• [The levels of put options purchased above were more than six times higher than normal.]  

• No similar trading in other airlines occurred on the Chicago exchange in the days 
immediately preceding Black Tuesday.  

• Morgan Stanley Dean Witter & Co., which occupied 22 floors of the World Trade Center, 
saw 2,157 of its October $45 put options bought in the three trading days before Black 
Tuesday; this compares to an average of 27 contracts per day before September 6. Morgan 
Stanley’s share price fell from $48.90 to $42.50 in the aftermath of the attacks. Assuming 
that 2,000 of these options contracts were bought based upon knowledge of the 
approaching attacks, their purchasers could have profited by at least $1.2 million.  

• Merrill Lynch & Co., which occupied 22 floors of the World Trade Center, saw 12,215 
October $45 put options bought in the four trading days before the attacks; the previous 
average volume in those shares had been 252 contracts per day [a 1200% increase!]. 
When trading resumed, Merrill’s shares fell from $46.88 to $41.50; assuming that 11,000 
option contracts were bought by „insiders,“ their profit would have been about $5.5 
million.  

• European regulators are examining trades in Germany’s Munich Re, Switzerland’s Swiss 
Re, and AXA of France, all major reinsurers with exposure to the Black Tuesday disaster. 
[FTW Note: AXA also owns more than 25% of American Airlines stock making the 
attacks a „double whammy“ for them.]  

On September 29, 2001 - in a vital story that has gone unnoticed by the major media - the San 
Francisco Chronicle reported, „Investors have yet to collect more than $2.5 million in profits they 
made trading options in the stock of United Airlines before the Sept. 11, terrorist attacks, 
according to a source familiar with the trades and market data.  

„The uncollected money raises suspicions that the investors - whose identities and nationalities 
have not been made public - had advance knowledge of the strikes.“ They don’t dare show up 
now. The suspension of trading for four days after the attacks made it impossible to cash-out 
quickly and claim the prize before investigators started looking.  

„... October series options for UAL Corp. were purchased in highly unusual volumes three 
trading days before the terrorist attacks for a total outlay of $2,070; investors bought the option 
contracts, each representing 100 shares, for 90 cents each. [This represents 230,000 shares]. 
Those options are now selling at more than $12 each. There are still 2,313 so-called „put“ 
options outstanding [valued at $2.77 million and representing 231,300 shares] according to the 
Options Clearinghouse Corp.“  

„...The source familiar with the United trades identified Deutsche Bank Alex. Brown, the 
American investment banking arm of German giant Deutsche Bank, as the investment bank used 
to purchase at least some of these options...“  

As reported in other news stories, Deutsche Bank was also the hub of insider trading activity 
connected to Munich Re. just before the attacks.  
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CIA, the Banks and the Brokers  

Understanding the interrelationships between CIA and the banking and brokerage world is critical 
to grasping the already frightening implications of the above revelations. Let’s look at the history 
of CIA, Wall Street and the big banks by looking at some of the key players in CIA’s history. 
Clark Clifford - The National Security Act of 1947 was written by Clark Clifford, a Democratic 
Party powerhouse, former Secretary of Defense, and one-time advisor to President Harry Truman. 
In the 1980s, as Chairman of First American Bancshares, Clifford was instrumental in getting the 
corrupt CIA drug bank BCCI a license to operate on American shores. His profession: Wall 
Street lawyer and banker.  

John Foster and Allen Dulles - These two brothers „designed“ the CIA for Clifford. Both were 
active in intelligence operations during WW II. Allen Dulles was the U.S. Ambassador to 
Switzerland where he met frequently with Nazi leaders and looked after U.S. investments in 
Germany. John Foster went on to become Secretary of State under Dwight Eisenhower and Allen 
went on to serve as CIA Director under Eisenhower and was later fired by JFK. Their 
professions: partners in the most powerful - to this day - Wall Street law firm of Sullivan, 
Cromwell.  

Bill Casey - Ronald Reagan’s CIA Director and OSS veteran who served as chief wrangler during 
the Iran-Contra years was, under President Richard Nixon, Chairman of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. His profession: Wall Street lawyer and stockbroker.  

David Doherty - The current Vice President of the New York Stock Exchange for enforcement is 
the retired General Counsel of the Central Intelligence Agency.  

George Herbert Walker Bush - President from 1989 to January 1993, also served as CIA Director 
for 13 months from 1976-7. He is now a paid consultant to the Carlyle Group, the 11th largest 
defense contractor in the nation, and which shares joint investments with the bin Laden family.  

A.B. „Buzzy“ Krongard - The current Executive Director of the Central Intelligence Agency is 
the former Chairman of the investment bank A.B. Brown and former Vice Chairman of Banker’s 
Trust.  

John Deutch - This retired CIA Director from the Clinton Administration currently sits on the 
board at Citigroup, the nation’s second largest bank, which has been repeatedly and overtly 
involved in the documented laundering drug money. This includes Citigroup’s 2001 purchase of a 
Mexican bank known to launder drug money, Banamex.  

Nora Slatkin - This retired CIA Executive Director also sits on Citibank’s board.  

Maurice „Hank“ Greenburg - The CEO of AIG insurance, manager of the third largest capital 
investment pool in the world, was floated as a possible CIA Director in 1995. FTW exposed 
Greenberg’s and AIG’s long connection to CIA drug trafficking and covert operations in a two-
part series that was interrupted just prior to the attacks of September 11. AIG’s stock has bounced 
back remarkably well since the attacks. To read that story, please go to 
http://www.copvcia.com/stories/part_2.html.  
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One wonders how much damning evidence is necessary to respond to what is now irrefutable 
proof that CIA knew about the attacks and did not stop them. Whatever our government is doing, 
whatever the CIA is doing, it is clearly NOT in the interests of the American people, especially 
those who died on September 11.  

 

Copyright, 2001, Michael C. Ruppert and FTW Publications at http://www.copvcia.com. All 
Rights Reserved. May be reprinted or distributed for non-profit purposes only.  
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Massive pre-attack ‘insider trading’ offer authorities hottest 
trail to accomplices  

by Kyle F. Hence 

  
Centre for Research on Globalisation (CRG),  globalresearch.ca , 21 April 2002 

 
CRG’s Global Outlook, premiere issue on  „Stop the War“ provides detailed documentation on the war and 
September 11 Order/subscribe. Consult Table of Contents  

 

Part II -- Billions in Pre-911 Insider Trading Profits Leaves a Hot Trail: How 
Bush Administration Naysayers May Have Let it go Cold 

Part I of Making a Killing provided a glimpse of a shadowy, legitimized global financial network 
that is employed by criminals of all kinds to carry out or manage the profits from all manner of 
nefarious activity. It documented how the Bush Administration in 2001 undermined, stalled and 
withdrew from a global effort to clamp down on money laundering. We learned the indirect 
connection Enron had to intense lobbying efforts which ultimately swayed the Administration. 
And how following the attacks of 9-11, Bush changed his tune and working with allies in the war 
on terrorism, seized over $100 million linked to Al Qeada and other terrorist groups. 
Unfortunately, this is likely the tip of the iceberg of drug and terror money that is managed by the 
highest echelons of double-breasted gucci suited criminals. 

In Part II, we will examine closely what is likely the largest, most globalized and heinous case of 
insider trading in economic history and how it offered authorities a hot money trail to follow. If 
successful in tracking the perpetrators, authorities would not only be successful in implicating 
obvious accomplices in the 9-11 attacks, but also would be able to strike deeply into the 
infrastructure of a shadow financial network and hundreds of billions of dollars that flow through 
it. 

 

As of mid-March, authorities say they have frozen over $100 million in terrorist assets. But how 
to strike deeper to prevent future attacks? Some believe the answer lies at the end of the paper 
trail that investigators are following from huge insider trading placed on carefully selected stocks 
in the days leading up to 9-11. 
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According to Phil Erlanger, a former Senior Technical Analyst with Fidelity , and founder of a 
Florida firm that tracks short selling and options trading, insiders made off with billions (not mere 
millions) in profits by betting on the fall of stocks they knew would tumble in the aftermath of the 
WTC and Pentagon attacks. [http://www.erlangersqueezeplay.com ] Andreas von Bulow, a 
former member of the German Parliament, once responsible for the oversight of the German 
secret services, estimated that profits by insider traders were $15 billion. CBS offered a far more 
conservative figure when it reported (Sept 26) that „at least seven countries are dissecting 
suspicious trades that may have netted more than $100 million in profits.“ 

Regardless of estimates, to Dylan Ratigan of Bloomberg Business News, the evidence was 
compelling; „This is the worst case of insider trading ever.“ [Good Morning Texas, Sept. 20, 
2001] The sheer scope, size and the uncanny timing of 9-11 insider trading demanded an 
aggressive investigation. But the stakes involved, with nearly 3000 dead, have never been higher 
for financial crimes investigators. 

Suspicious trading was first identified by Japanese authorities. But soon concerns were raised and 
a pattern could be discerned in countries around the world including Singapore, Hong Kong, 
Italy, France, Switzerland, the Netherlands, Great Britain, Germany and Canada. Jonathan Winer, 
an ABC News Consultant said „it’s absolutely unprecedented to see cases of insider trading 
covering the entire world from Japan to the US to North America to Europe.“ [World News 
Tonight, Sept. 20, 2001] Investigators were soon hot on the trail on a matter of obvious national 
security to many nations. 

Bloomberg News reported that Former chief of Enforcement at the SEC; William McLucas said 
regulators will „certainly be able to track down every trade, where the trade cleared, where the 
trade was directed from.“ However, Treasury Secretary O’Neill downplayed hopes for a 
successful investigation by pointing out the challenge of penetrating veils of secrecy before a 
name can be attached to a suspicious trade; „You’ve got to go through ten veils before you get to 
the real source.“ [AP; September 20, testimony before Senate Banking Committee] . Talk about 
lowering the bar of expectations; very unsettling coming from someone who could help bring to 
justice those guilty of the worst terrorist attack history--the massacre of thousands. 

In the months since these comments, tightlipped authorities have revealed few details. Any 
questions put to those prosecuting the war on terrorist funding cannot be answered. The familiar 
refrain is heard; „our investigation is ongoing.“ Though widely reported in September and 
October of last year, months have elapsed since the insider trading received attention. The 
unresolved crime of 9-11 insider trading is a dark cloud that hangs over this administration and its 
prosecution of the ‘war on terrorism.’ What is worse is that those who profited remain free to use 
those profits of death to finance their next attack. 

For those who dismiss the whole phenomena, here’s what we do know thus far from reports from 
major newspapers and television news outlets around the globe. Taken separately any of the 
following details or comments is notable, but taken together and placed in context, the evidence 
of unprecedented profiteering by terrorists and/or those with prior knowledge is clearly 
undeniable. 

Massive Put Options spikes and ‘Naked’ calls Bloomberg News reported that put options in UAL 
Corp (parent for United Airlines) surged 285 times the average volume and 75 times the total 
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number of put options traded up until that time. This was the largest reported spike. In another 
observation of the same phenomena reported in the September 22nd Herald Sun, UAL put 
options contracts soared 90 times in one day over total from the previous three weeks. That’s 90x 
not 90%. On September 10, put option contracts on AMR (parent for American Airlines) spiked 
60 times the daily average and five times the total of all $30 put options traded before September 
10. [„Pre-attack trading probed: Regulators in U.S., Europe and Asia check put options“; Judy 
Mathewson and Michael Nol, September 19] 

„I saw put-call numbers higher than I’ve ever seen in 10 years of following the markets, 
particularly the options markets,“ said John Kinnucan, principal of Broadband Research quoted in 
The San Francisco Chronicle. 

Bloomberg.com and Erlangersqeezeplay.com published reports identifying a clear pattern of 
highly unusual, and in some cases, massive spikes in put options in stocks that would have been 
deemed by those with detailed prior knowledge most likely hardest hit in the market aftermath of 
a WTC attack. These were primarily airline (UAL and AMR, notably not Delta), insurance, 
brokerage and hotel stocks. Phil Erlanger also noted a pattern of significant spikes in ‘naked 
calls’ in the same stocks. Naked calls are a high-risk form of short selling not backed up by stock 
position in the company at issue. 

Thirty-eight companies were placed on a SEC list and circulated amongst brokerages that placed 
the put options on behalf of clients. These included among many others, TD Waterhouse, NFS 
(subsidiary of Fidelity of Boston), Alex Brown/Deutsche Bank, Goldman Sachs, and Lehman 
Brothers. [The San Francisco Chronicle; AP]. In the January 2002 Congressional record, an 
informal survey conducted by Levin-Grassley staffs, revealed that 10 of 22 responding securities 
and brokerage firms, managed accounts for 45,000 offshore clients. 

Below are a few standouts on the SEC list [‘ *’ indicates a WTC tenant; (-x) represents the 
multiple over average volume]: Airlines: UAL (285x), AMR (60x) Insurance sector: Marsh & 
McLennan (93x)*, Citigroup (45x), Swiss Re, XL Capital Brokers: Bear Stearns (60x), Morgan 
Stanley (27x)*, Merrill Lynch (12x) 

Not included on the SEC list, but featured on the Erlangersqeezeplay.com report, were hotel 
chains Marriott, Hilton and Starwood Hotels. Most anomalous were the huge put option trading 
spikes placed in only two of the three major US airlines. Almost always, if investors believe the 
airline industry is due to drop, they will short all three major carriers. This was not the case here 
because Delta did not see spikes similar to UAL and AMR. 

Analysts also noted that though the insurance sector was one of the strongest in a depressed stock 
market, there were huge spikes in put options in Marsh & McLennan and in Citigroup. Marsh & 
McLennan, the biggest insurance broker, was a World Trade Center tenant with 1,700 employees. 
It also saw, next to UAL, the highest spike in put options; thus you have a confluence of facts 
that, in the minds of many experienced traders and experts, amounts to unequivocal evidence of 
foul play. Clearly traders placed bets based on sure-fire insider prior knowledge. The odds against 
this happening randomly or coincidentally are astronomical; probably incalculable. 
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The put options, though they received the bulk of news coverage, were reportedly only one of 
several instruments used by the insiders. Suspicious trading in 5-year bonds and in oil and gold 
futures was also noted, and presumably investigated. 

Oil and gold futures The Associated Press reported on September 22nd that a German Central 
Bank study strongly points to „terrorism insider trading“ not only in airline and insurance 
companies but also in gold and oil futures. These he said, „could not be chalked up to 
coincidence.“ Bundesbank President, Ernst Welteke, said that though it would be „extremely 
difficult to really verify“ but he believed „in one or the other case it will be possible to pinpoint 
the source.“ 

Unusual high volume in pre-attack 5 year bond trading The Wall Street Journal reported on 
October 2 that the Secret Service had begun a probe into an unusually high volume of five-year 
US Treasury note purchases made prior to the attacks. The Treasury note transactions included a 
single $5 billion trade. The Journal noted that „Five-year Treasury notes are among the best 
investments in the event of a world crisis, especially one that hits the US. The notes are prized for 
their safety and their backing by the US government, and usually rally when investors flee riskier 
investments, such as stocks.“ The value of these notes, the Journal pointed out, has risen sharply 
after the events of September 11. 

‘Last hours’ surge of financial activity at WTC According to a Reuters report of December 16, 
German data retrieval experts, hired by WTC tenant firms, were mining data off damaged hard 
disks recovered from the ground zero. The goal is to discover who was responsible for the 
movement of unusually large sums of money through the computers of the WTC in the hours 
before the attack. Peter Henschel, director of Convar, the firm responsible, said, „not only the 
volume, but the size of the transactions was far higher than usual for a day like that.“ Richard 
Wagner, a data retrieval expert estimated that more than $100 million in illegal transactions 
appeared to have rushed through the WTC computers before and during the disaster. 

The evidence and comments offered by traders, analysts, bankers and others in the immediate 
aftermath indicates there was, in fact, a carefully planned and sophisticated effort of massive 
profiteering from the precipitous fall of stocks that occurred when trading opened following the 
attack. This is expert documentation and observations based on years of experience. The 
implications are absolutely frightening. And all the more reason for authorities to pull out all the 
stops to identify and prosecute those responsible and shut down the global financial network 
facilitated the most heinous of crimes. Unfortunately, that’s not exactly what’s happened. 

‘Naysayers’ raise suspicions; Enron diverts attention from dire National security issue Months 
have passed since the launch of investigations by the SEC, NYSE, CBOE (Chicago Board of 
Options Exchange), Department of Justice, FBI, Secret Service, CIA, Department of Treasury, 
and the NSA. And yet there is no news, no suspects, no prosecutions, nothing. There are fears 
now that early ‘naysayers’ may have let a hot trail to go cold and allowed the terrorist insiders to 
cover their tracks. Despite all the evidence to the contrary, the FBI’s Dennis Lormel said on 
October 3, 2001 before Congress that there were „no flags or indicators“ referring to mere 
„rumors“ about the pre-attack insider trading. 

The Enron scandal, beginning in October, followed on the heels of the 9-11 attack and subsequent 
investigations into Enron began to divide and stretch the limited resources of the agencies and 
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regulators involved. The media focus began to shift as well with six or eight Congressional 
committees holding hearings and providing all sorts of media drama. Congress began to look 
toward remedies to stave off a total crisis of confidence in our economic system, and justifiably 
so. Obviously, the largest bankruptcy in US history, affecting thousands of employees with 401k 
plans and millions of pensioners, merits serious attention. Ironically, it may lead them to crack 
down on the same infrastructure; employed by Enron’s Andrew Fastow and terrorist alike. 

However, a case could be made that the focus on Enron has diverted attention away from a matter 
of far greater national security. The insiders, possibly the masterminds behind the suicide attacks, 
have walked away with huge profits for their sophisticated pre-attack trading; estimated by some 
to be in the billions of dollars. More to the point, they are now planning and financing their next 
attack with these 9-11 takings, as yet unmolested by a genuinely aggressive U.S. effort to shut 
them down. 

In light of the weighty and compelling evidence, Lormel’s insistence there were „no flags or 
indicators“ of possible terrorist insider trading, is blatantly wrong or worse, suspect. Most of the 
information above, including Bloomberg trading charts documenting massive put options spikes, 
was in the public domain prior to his testimony. Yet, Lormel claimed there was no indication of 
suspicious trading. Why then were investigations launched by over a dozen nations and 8 or 9 
U.S. government agencies, exchanges and commissions? How does one account for supporting 
comments of the traders and analysts with years of hands-on experience in the markets? 

Lormel’s testimony, coming from an official charged with tracking down, and starving terrorists 
of funding to protect Americans does little to inspire confidence; especially in the wake of the 
worst intelligence failure in US history. On the contrary, such remarks only raise very 
uncomfortable suspicions and legitimate concern that the forces behind walls of financial secrecy 
are so powerful as to thwart or intimidate the highest echelon of those responsible for executing 
our nation’s war on terrorism. Or on drug trafficking. Or on Enronomic tax evasion and corporate 
fraud for that matter. 

The obvious challenge for authorities is to put these suspicions to rest and follow the money trail 
to those complicit in the attacks. To do so, requires investigators to break through the veils of 
bank secrecy in offshore tax havens that may protect terrorists and Enron profiteers alike. 
Unfortunately, thanks to the Bush Administrations withdrawal from last year’s FATF efforts, 
investigators may be having difficulty in doing so. And once again, the trail may have gone cold. 
And yet it is not unreasonable to expect that given such a matter of national security, Congress 
and the authorities would pull out ALL the stops. They would act quickly to force financial 
entities to divulge the names of those who placed the trades in question. 

Surely, ‘the most powerful nation in the world’ can apply enough pressure on non-cooperating 
financial jurisdictions to force them to reveal the identities of terrorists who could attack again at 
any moment. The reality of the threat of more attacks precludes the use of past excuses and 
inaction. The Cayman Islands, Nauru, indeed most offshore havens lack standing armies. While it 
may be perhaps ‘the hardest of nuts to crack,’ the urgency and justification demands we do 
whatever is necessary to do so, at little risk to our nation’s armed forces. 

A real war on terrorism would lead to seizures of billions not millions. Nothing close to this level 
has yet occurred and the investigation has yielded little in five months. According to a statement 
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by Representative LaFalce on the Congressional Record, the Treasury Department, as of late 
January had failed to exercise, even once, their new powers to pressure non-cooperating overseas 
and offshore financial facilities. Investigators into pre-attack trading have not implicated a single 
insider, terrorist or otherwise. UN efforts are creeping along ineffectively with many nations 
failing to fully cooperate or not cooperate at all, as divulged to the press by American UN 
Ambassador Negroponte at a February event aired on C-SPAN. There is a distressing and 
suspicious pattern here. The administration’s will to pursue this matter is sorely lacking. 

Another case in point: In December of 2000, the U.S. and Russia co-sponsored a UN Security 
Council resolution to freeze monies linked to designated terrorists. The list included five alleged 
close associates of Bin Laden--Amin al-Haq, Saqar al-Jadawi, Ahmad Sa’id Al-Kadr, Sa’d A-
Sharif and Bilal bin Marwan. Inexplicably the U.S. Treasury did not officially place these five on 
the U.S. blacklist until October 12, 2001. Why the delay of ten months and who is responsible for 
it? Naturally, this case raises further suspicion, as it rightly should, regarding the intent and 
integrity of those charged with protecting our national interests and security. 

Part III of the Making a Killing series will examine evidence of how NSA bungling, DoD 
accounting and Bush Administration stonewalling could be compromising our national security, 
the investigation into 9-11 and our very Constitutional foundation. 

 

Copyright ©  K. Hence  2002. Reprinted for fair use only 
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PART TWO: LARRY 
SILVERSTEIN’S JACKPOT DEAL 

 
 
This report describes what World Trade building 7 was, how it was destroyed, how 
Silverstein signed a lease for the entire World Trade Center only weeks before 9-11, and 
what the extremely suspicious economics surrounding this transaction are. The result of 
this report is that the economics of tearing down building 7 and signing the lease for the 
entire WTC bear inherent proof of Silverstein having foreknowledge of the 9-11-1 terror 
attacks and the government’s position in the subsequent investigations. 
 
The weakness of the 9-11 insider crime has a name: Larry Silverstein, the principal lease 
owner of the World Trade Center. This New York real estate magnate is not an 
„anonymous market participant” like in the aforementioned insider trading cases. He is 
extremely suspect of being a 9-11 insider with foreknowledge of America’s great 
synthetic terror attacks, and foreknowledge of the government’s position in the 
subsequent investigations. Due to such foreknowledge and action based on it, his 
investment company ended up with claims of $3.5 billion or possibly even $7 billion 
against the pool of insurance companies who insured the buildings of the World Trade 
Center. 
 
This is a complex business case of insurance fraud, mass murder and „synthetic terrorism” 
(Webster Tarpley). It has, however, a clear mathematical and financial grid. We can break 
its complexity down into manageable steps as follows: 
 

1. WTC Building 7 and its Controlled Demolition 
2. The 1989 Plan to Decommission the WTC 
3. The Legalities of the Mega-Swindle 

a. Ownership Title and Mortgages of WTC7 
b. Silverstein’s Summer 2001 Lease Deal for the Entire WTC 
c. Silverstein’s Multi-Billion Dollar Insurance Claims 

 
(Reference to the preceding four parts of this report is made, with forensic details such as 
regarding the WTC fires, explosions, etc.) 
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1. WTC Building 7 and its Controlled Demolition 
 
7, World Trade Center 
  
Built: 1985 
Destroyed: 11 September 2001 
47 Floors 
Height: 174 m 
Architect: Emery Roth & Sons
  
7 WTC was built in 1985 as an addition to the World Trade Center, located across Vesey 
Street from the main compound. 
 
 
The World Trade Center in Manhattan consisted of seven buildings, numbered 1 through 
7. WTC1 and WTC2 were the Twin Towers, but the other buildings were of course lower 
and smaller than the famous Twin Towers. Here is a photo of building 7 standing between 
the Verizon building to its left and the Federal Building to its right, with the side of North 
Tower (WTC1) in the left of the photo (across Vesey Street): 
 

 
 
Overleaf is a schematic: 
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World Trade Center building 7 is the dark building before the looming Twin Towers. The 
light terraced building in front of it is 101 Barclay Street (view from Greenwich Street). 
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Here is a street map of the vicinity: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Overleaf is a photo of seven World Trade reflecting the Twin Towers: 
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Here is building 7 after the fall of the Twin Towers, standing near the left edge of the 
photo: 
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Here is building 7 instants before its collapse at approximately 5:25 p.m. on 9-11-1: 
 

 
 
We clearly see no raging fire infernos, and not even a major smolder. The local fires on 
two floors (reportedly floors 7 and 12) had apparently gone extinct due to lack of fuel (the 
fires were reported only about 4:10 p.m. in the first place and may very well have been 
articifial). 
 
Building 7 was evacuated before 9:00 a.m. on 9-11-1, because, according to witness 
reports, there was a huge explosion in the lobby. No plane ever flew into building 7. 
 
After about 4:30 p.m. before building 7 was pulled in a controlled demolition, the firemen 
evacuated the area. At 
http://www.angelfire.com/ny5/tradecencrimes/CrummyBuildings.html  
we read: 
 
Take a look at these remarks from Photographer Tom Franklin who took that „Iwo Jima flag 
raising“ photo:  
http://september11.natca.org/CollectedWritings/FranklinPhoto.htm  
 

„Firemen evacuated the area as they prepared for the collapse of Building 
Seven.  
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We were catching our breath, drinking water and juice, when I decided to walk 
back toward the debris. It was between 4 and 5 p.m.  

I would say I was 150 yards away when I saw the firefighters raising the flag.“ 

 
Franklin’s remarks show us that somebody told the firemen by about 4 to 5pm to stay away from 
the building because it was going to collapse. What evidence was there that it would collapse? 
Who told the firemen to stay away? Does the FBI wonder who those people were?  

Considering that no fire had ever caused the collapse of a steel building before, why would 
anybody believe building 7 would crumble from a fire? Or were they just guessing that the 
collapse was possible after they watched the two towers collapse?  

I suggest you consider the possibility that somebody was trying to keep the firemen away 
because they did not want the firemen to put the fire out. Also, by keeping the firemen away 
there would be fewer deaths to explain when the explosives were set off.  

We see on photos that there were merely small local fire pockets but no raging fire 
infernos, certainly nothing that could weaken let alone melt the structural steel that gave 
the highrise its stability: 
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Several videos from different angles show a controlled demolition with a straight vertical 
fall into the building’s footprint lasting 6.5 seconds, demolition squibs and cement 
pulverization. 
 
The fake government investigation simply leaves the question unanswered how building 7 
fell. It is usually blamed on fires without any specifics. As with the entire World Trade 
Center, the crime scene of the destruction of building 7 was disappeared. Practically no 
steel from the building is left. 
 
In September 2002, the lease owner Larry Silverstein admitted in a PBS 
documentary entitled „America Rebuilds” (for a long time also available as a home 
video, ISBN 0-7806-4006-3) that he and the fire chief decided to „pull” (demolish by 
explosions) building 7. The decision was made in a phone call, without consulting 
any third parties, and without any pressing urgent need. As will be shown shortly 
below, these most famous authentic words of 9-11-1 hold a tremendous lie and 
deception to the public. The statement can only be rationally explained as a near-
blackmail pressure point in Silverstein’s struggles with architects, government and 
competitors to implement his ideas about how to rebuild the ground zero site. 
 

*     *     * 
 
As with the Twin Towers, the seismic of the building 7 collapse indicates the release of a 
strong underground explosion energy just prior to the collapse, see chart from the data of 
Columbia University: 
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The site of the downed building 7 also held a thermal hot spot from basement pools of 
unnatural molten hot steel for days after the collapse, physically impossible to explain 
through fires alones. This is clear black-and-white physical evidence of a controlled 
demolition using pre-planted explosives in building 7, confirmed by the lease owner’s 
description of how the building was demolished („pulled”). Here is a government photo of 
the hot spot of building 7, source 
http://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2001/ofr-01-0429/thermal.r09.html
thermographic satellite photo taken on September 16, 2001, here relevant: spots A and B: 
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There was no compelling need to „pull” building 7. The demolition actually caused 
tremendously expensive damage to the Verizon building to the east (total damage 
sustained on 9-11-1: $1.4 billion) and to the Federal building to the west. A special 
officer, Craig Miller died in the demolition of building 7. This would likely qualify as a 
homicide. There have been many other highrise fires with much more serious 
conflagrations and longer burning times, and no fireman has found fit to „pull” such 
highrise. 
 
Apart from that the notion that such a multimillion dollar would be 
made on the phone between a single businessman and a fire chief is 
outright ludicrous. Silverstein was not even in full control of „his” 
building, since it was heavily mortgaged. This business and finance 
aspect is to be discussed in the next sections. 
 
 

Altogether, the controlled demolition of the 

World Trade Center under the false guise of 

„Muslim terror attacks” was Silverstein’s 

„jackpot deal” because it gave him a multi-

billion dollar lift at the expense of some 20 

defrauded insurance companies. 

 

The gist of the fraud is Silverstein’s 

ruthless use of his insider knowledge that 

9-11-1 would happen – invaluable insider 

knowledge several months before the day 

of terror actually did happen. 
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2. The 1989 Plan to Decommission the WTC 
 
The business plan for demolishing the World Trade Center was developed no later than 
1989. Read carefully the following article from Rense, 
http://www.rense.com/general47/pulled.htm  
 
 

WTC 7 ‘Pulled’ By 
Silverstein,  

FDNY - Were Towers  
‘Pulled’ Too? 

From Judy Singer 
Las Vegas 

1-18-4 
 
 

Does this suggest pre-positioned explosives in the Towers? 
Hi Jeff - While surfing the net, I came across this information as shown below. It 
appears that the WTC Center buildings had ‘been pulled’ which is why the World 
Trade Center buildings collapsed.  
I heard Mr. Silverstein’s admissions on my computer audio file. There have been so 
many conflicting reports. However, I do believe this report substantiates why the WTC 
buildings finally collapsed, as sad as it is! 
 
PBS Documentary: Silverstein, FDNY Razed WTC 7 
 
By Jeremy Baker 
 
In a stunning and belated development concerning the attacks of 9/11 Larry 
Silverstein, the controller of the destroyed WTC complex, stated plainly in a PBS 
documentary that he and the FDNY decided jointly to demolish the Solomon Bros. 
building, or WTC 7, late in the afternoon of Tuesday, Sept. 11, 2001. 
 
This admission appeared in a PBS documentary originally aired in Sept. of 2002 
entitled „America Rebuilds“. Mr Silverstein’s comments came after FEMA and the 
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Society of Civil Engineers conducted an extensive and costly investigation into the 
curious collapse of WTC 7. The study specifically concluded that the building had 
collapsed as a result of the inferno within, sparked, apparently, by debris falling from 
the crumbling North Tower. 
 
In the documentary Silverstein makes the following statement; 
 
„I remember getting a call from the, er, fire department commander, telling me that 
they were not sure they were gonna be able to contain the fire, and I said, ‘We’ve had 
such terrible loss of life, maybe the smartest thing to do is pull it.’ And they made that 
decision to pull and we watched the building collapse.“ 
 
[This can be heard in the audio file http://VestigialConscience.com/PullIt.mp3. Thanks 
to Sir Dave ‘tmo’ Soule for transfering this from the video to an MP3 file. „America 
Rebuilds“, PBS Home Video, ISBN 0-7806-4006-3, is available from 
http://shop.pbs.org/products/AREB901/ .] 
 
Mr. Silverstein’s comments stand in direct contradiction to the findings of the 
extensive FEMA report. They even negate Kevin Spacey’s narrative in the very 
documentary in which they appear; „WTC 7 fell after burning for 7 hours.“ If it had 
been generally known that the building was „pulled“ wouldn’t Mr. Spacey have 
phrased it that way? 
 
In the same program a cleanup worker referred to the demolition of WTC 6: „... we’re 
getting ready to pull the building six.“ There can be little doubt as to how the word 
„pull“ is being used in this context. 
 
[This can be heard in the audio file 
http://VestigialConscience.com/PullIt2.mp3 taken from the video.] 
 
This shocking contradiction is yet another curious twist in a disturbing series of events 
surrounding the „collapse“ of WTC 7, and the WTC complex in general. 
 
Among these is the fact that, in all the history of high-rise fires, not one has ever 
resulted in a collapse. On 9/11 three such anomalies were alleged to have occurred. 
Those who argue that the towers were vulnerable in their top-heaviness and verticality 
cannot then explain the collapse due to fire of WTC 7, a broad based, 47-story steel-
framed building. 
 
There is also the fact that most of the structures destroyed by falling debris were 
directly under the twin towers, and none of them caught fire. WTC 7 was not only a 
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full city block away from Tower 1 but WTC 6 stood directly between the two 
buildings and certainly absorbed most of the damage. 
 
In addition, WTC 7 suffered a strangely thorough and complete collapse, leaving only 
a leveled lot where it once stood. Although it was a much smaller structure, WTC 6’s 
8-story carcass stood for months afterwards, even after being gutted by Tower 1. 
 
There’s also disturbing correlations between the collapse of WTC 7 and the bombing 
of the Murrah building in Oklahoma City. Both buildings were constructed using the 
same bridge beam system that, in WTC 7’s case, allegedly contributed to its demise. 
But more importantly WTC 7, like the Murrah building, housed high-level government 
offices including the FBI, CIA and the Secret Service. WTC 7 was also the storage 
facility for millions of files pertaining to active cases involving international drug 
dealing, organized crime, terrorism and money laundering. 
 
WTC 6, also known as the Customs House building, housed the Departments of 
Commerce, Agriculture and Labor and yet another Murrah building tenant, the Bureau 
of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms. 
 
WTC 7 was also the location of a kind of a doomsday bunker (a $15 million project of 
Rudy Giuliani’s), a command post from which to operate in case of a total 
infrastructure breakdown. Building 7 had apparently been bullet proofed and 
reinforced to withstand hurricane force winds and attacks of all kinds, a fact which 
makes its alleged fatal vulnerability to falling debris all the more puzzling. 
 
Mr. Silverstein’s comments imply that he and the FDNY threw together an expert 
demolition job in the space of a few short hours on the afternoon of 9/11. This 
revelation is staggering enough considering its blatant contradiction to what has been, 
all along, the official cause of the „collapse.“ But the fact that the building was buried 
under tons of debris and consumed in flames at the time makes his comments all the 
more baffling. 
 
There’s a compelling theory that bombs had been planted inside the twin towers 
designed to complete the job the hijacked jets had begun. A handful of seasoned 
professional firefighters and demolition men have commented on how neatly and 
evenly the towers collapsed. Mr. Silverstein’s bewildering statements in „America 
Rebuilds“ give an exponential boost in credence to this claim and, in a more terrifying 
light, loan credibility to growing suspicions that the attacks of 9/11 may have been an 
inside job. 
 
http://www.epilot.com/sdspartners/searchpage_bluedesign.asp?affid=bravenet  
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Comment  
From Tom Gordon  
Systems Engineer  
1-19-4 
 
World Trade Center ‘Bombing,’  
An Unwitting Participant Asks; „WHY?“ 
_____________ 
 
In 1988, I moved to NYC., seeking architectural photography assignments from 
various key architects. Before moving there, I asked for help from my prior clients in 
Denver. One good friend and close ally, Herb Roth, suggested I contact his friends at 
„Emery-Roth Architects,“ (No relation) After the usual portfolio review and pricing 
discussions, Barry Roth, AIA, asked me to cover the „World Trade Center.“ This 
assignment, I thought, would be one of the greatest opportunities of my career!  
 
It was widely known that „Ezra Stoller and Associates“ and „Norman McGrath“ had 
laboriously photographed the World Trade Center for a period of over one year. They 
created some of the finest known images of the towers, the most memorable ones are 
at twilight, with the Statue of Liberty in the foreground. They informed me that Ezra 
had actually photographed it routinely for something like 6 years. 
 
I was allowed to analyze the firm’s existing ‘photo files’ before I began my coverage. I 
asked a lot of questions which is how I learned most of the background information 
I’m about to cover. The ‘librarian’ at Emery’s offices was actually the main corporate 
secretary, who’s demeanor was more like someone you would expect to work under at 
the Metropolitan Museum, -totally reserved and humorless. This was my first 
challenge, and frankly a cause for alarm.  
 
Not long after the buildings were built, the WTC owners retained the architect of 
record, and their photographer, and several principal engineers from the original 
consulting firm- „to establish the safety of the twin towers.“ Each of their staff 
members worked on this project on a ‘full-time’ contract basis, most of them for a 
period of about 10 years. By 1989, it was very late in the process, but there were still 
about 15 current participants involved in all. (I found all these ‘facts’ to be highly 
unusual, but perhaps simply beyond my 10+ years experience-level.) 
 
My assignment was to: „apply my Julius Schulman -technique,“ to photograph both of 
the towers in their contextual situation. „Not just the buildings, but especially how 
they ‘fit’ with the neighborhood. 
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After a month and a half, I had exhausted my interest in the street vantage-points, so I 
decided to go up in the towers early one morning, to see which adjacent rooftops could 
offer the most suitable additional views. It was still too cold to shoot those views. This 
was between May 9th and May 13, 1989. 
 
Carrying just my light-weight 35mm gear, I was singled-out from the regular building 
patrons by the lobby guards, which totally surprised me. I explained the nature of my 
business with a moderate degree of assurance, but was shocked when they reacted as 
though I had been expected, very matter-of-factly!. One of them phoned upstairs, 
while another insisted he was sending a guard with me, „to insure that I would 
arrive at the engineering office in time for our meeting.“ The suite was labeled: 
Skilling & Jackson, P.C.. -whom I had knowledge of, but no prior relations with. 
 
Had this been the leasing office, I would have understood the mix-up perfectly. 
Clearly, this was NOT a situation that could pertain to me in any way. I was not aware 
that Roth had an office in the building at all, but, like a true ‘rookie,’ I was feeling 
keen to discuss my abilities with their ‘big guns,’ since any contact with such people 
here could have lead me to major future assignments! 
 
When we arrived at the door to this suite, I was ‘very shocked’ to see the actual sign 
on their ‘main office door.’ The door and jamb itself were of completly service-grade 
materials, like an ordinary ‘back door’ at any other suite. The sign was brand new and 
simply said: Skilling Associates, P.C.. (This was a small engraved laminated sign from 
an ordinary office supply store.) I thought to myself: Humm, these people have been 
here over 10 years? 
 
„Everyone sit down and be quiet.“ „Who’s this?,“ the orator said loudly, starring at 
me. I said: „I ‘m the official photographer from Roth.“ 
{...like who are you and what’s it to you buddy, haven’t you heard of me? } 
 
Unflinching, somber and businesslike, he said without drawing a breath: 
 
Then, you are to be included, who sent you here? 
I said; „Barry Roth- I just got a message from his secretary.“  
(Which was almost completely true, but she hadn’t called about this, to my 
knowledge! ) 
 
He nodded and addressed the full group, then reading from a 4x5 file-card, 
acknowledged some absentee members and confirmed their knowledge and prior 
‘agreements of compliance.’ He said to the few of us in this special group: 
„Listen carefully, nobody gets out of this!“ 
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„Each of you were called here to sign an affidavit of non-disclosure. None of the 
information from our project can find it’s way into the public-eye. Absolutely 
nothing that we have learned from this project can be revealed to the public 
because it is potentially damaging to our client. Some of you have enjoyed 10 
years of service on this project for our client. Each of the team leaders have 
recently received raises and additional benefits. { someone } -has already received 
a new assignment and he will be getting a healthy raise at his new location, 
{undisclosed}.“ 
 
„I know this transition will take you by surprise, but there was no other way to 
handle it. You are all terminated from this project effective immediately! This means 
you need to clear your desks and surrender all of your files by the end of the day. 
I will assist you in getting these papers into the archive cabinets so we can give 
them to the owners for safekeeping.“ 
 
„After you have signed these forms, we will have a short recess. You may go to 
the Cafe, or to ‘Windows’ for lunch, but don’t leave the buildings! I want you all 
to know that I am sad to have to break this news. Your work will not go 
unnoticed, each of you has provided an invaluable service and we are all grateful. 
Do not think that this action shows any reflection on the exceptional quality of 
your individual work!“ 
 
This was like a military operation, yet no one in the room knew I didn’t work for 
their firm!  
 
So, we went to „lunch,“ at around 10:15am. where I was able to visit with 3, or 4 of 
the lesser engineers, without oversight from their ‘head honchos.’ I played it really 
cool considering my total ignorance. Each of them were furious. I said things like -
“Shame we have to dis-band, I was looking forward to being here for at least a few 
months.“ „What do you suppose we’ve done wrong?“ ...Each in turn revealed: 
 
„The fact is, we all know that the buildings can’t stand safely for over 40 to 60 
years. It’s not the sub-soil, that’s granite. They must have received the completed 
demolition report, which we all knew to expect. It was supposed to be finished 
months ago. Clearly it looks bad. Well, I’m sure we all know the real implication- 
that the owners can’t get their money back. That’s what we all learned today. -
Thanks _X_, f*** you!“ 
 
I asked: -“Why, what do you mean?“ 
 
It will cost $____ Billion to erect the two scaffolds to surround both buildings, that’s 
the only known way to take these baby’s down. We’ll literally have to re-build them, 
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then un-build them, twice! Now it’s obvious, bottom-line is that the developer will have 
to sell them soon, or take a serious bath. (I forget the actual figure) 
 
-“Why are they worried now? They still seem really stable architecturally.“ 
 
They are much too big. It’s a piece-by-piece problem. They simply can’t be 
imploded, we know of no other way. Why do you think they hired me for 10 years 
to find other solutions? I’m not a structural specialist, just an architect!  
 
- „I thought Barry said you guys were about to find a solution.“ 
 
(I could see that was the wrong thing to say.) A slight look of concern spread over 
their faces, until I said-“What’s a few more Flying Buttresses going to cost?“ It was a 
lame jab, but they bought it and everyone relaxed as I pretended to be contemplating 
my next job interview. 
 
I learned that ‘none of them were allowed to be holding other jobs,’ as long as they 
held these ‘titles,’ a contract-stipulation had occurred at least 4 years prior. They all 
griped about the „pathetic“ lunch; „This is horrible, I can’t eat here!“ No one was very 
relaxed. The more I learned, the more scared I was as I listened for more fascinating 
inside news. 
 
-Finally, pushing my luck, I prodded again: „So tell me about the electrolytic issues.“ 
 
Everyone went quiet, but realised they were in deep. They began a patent narritive 
which was clearly not about to go anywhere, since I think they knew that I knew as 
much as each of them about the composition and arrangements of these metals. I 
had effectively blown my cover. 
Suddenly, just short of our hour, a man came to escort us back to their desks which 
had been mostly riffled through, or completely boxed and removed. 
 
„Again, son, tell me who you are?“ -One of the senior associates asked. „You guys 
walk ahead, he said, using firm body-lauguage to physically indicate that he would be 
in a position to restrain me at any time. 
 
„I’m T.S. Gordon the official photographer. They were tired of paying Stoller.“ 
„Who’s Stoller, I only know of McGrath?“ „Are you saying you are not with Mr. 
McGrath’s firm?“ 
 
I said; „Ezra Stoller, the world’s greatest at shooting tall buildings. Haven’t you 
seen all the great shots up at Emery Roth? McGrath has shot what, 6 or 8 great 
photos in 4 years!,“ (-I sarcastically mused, until I began to feel that he might arrest 
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me. By the way, Norman’s shot’s were great too, but I felt I had to assert a strong 
opinion.) 
 
„You go by; Tom, Thomas, or T.S.?“ -He asked, looking again at my drivers 
license. 
 
„TS- I was called in to cover the site, not just the buildings. I didn’t even need to 
come in here again for my assignment!“ - I said, carefully back-stepping, like I 
could find my way to the elevator. He grabbed my arm and we proceeded rapidly 
through the corridors behind the others. „No, you were called in because everyone 
had to sign off on their part in this entire assignment. You say you work for 
Barry__ who?“ 
 
I responded with the proper name and added, „He’s the one that cuts my checks and 
I give him ALL the film.“  (An exaggeration, but I knew Barry was a former project 
manager and he would be at lunch if they tried to call.) 
„You are not to tell anyone about your employment here, ever!“ -he said. 
 
„Wait here by the window, all of you with outside affiliations.“ A couple of guys 
took their seats by the North window, but I was nervous and I stood with my back to 
them as I starred down on the un-finished looking iron-work of building #7, which had 
just been ‘topped-out’ with a ceremony the day before. 
 
„What are you studying?“ someone asked. „I can’t believe that building is so tall 
and skinny,“ and I really couldn’t. ( I had toured #7, so I was quite curious about this 
viewing angle.) He stood up, evidently really angry, and said quite unpleasantly; 
„Yeah good old #7, the building that never should have been built!“ 
 
The room went silent. His tone was immediately received as a threat by the boss. 
He separated the three of us and called my contact at Emery-Roth who then 
acknowledged that I was hired to shoot the building. Neither discussed any 
details, so I was off the hook in a way. He dismissed me and said I was not to talk 
to any of the other participants on the way out, not ever again. An armed guard 
escorted me down to the street. 
 
Within a few days I called Ezra Stoller, in White Plains, who, speaking about WTC, 
innocently revealed that he; „Wasn’t allowed to shoot any more pictures of it.“ That 
was a very funny thing to hear him say.  No one ever „doesn’t allow“ a photographer 
to get a better shot. I didn’t say what had happened to me, only that it was very 
exciting for me to get to follow in his shoes. I thanked him for the friendly phone visit 
and promised to show him the prints if I got any really great shots. He was very polite 
and understood my admiration. 
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_____________ 
 
Based on a true life experience I had at the World Trade Center, I offer this document 
now, to those who may be searching for „ key potential motives“ behind the actions 
that led to the 9/11 attacks. I do not intend to imply that any of the parties that I will 
mention here were directly involved in the coordinated effort to destroy the building. 
 
However, it is clearer to me, over time, that this information would have provided a 
pre-eminent, and utterly untraceable ‘blue-print’ to the group that finally engineered 
the 9/11 attack. 
 
This document was originally released in 2003, and was ammended for accuracy, on: 
1/18/2004. 
This information is entirely true and this is its first public release. My explanation 
does not intend to add substantially in any way to the factual information that is 
contained in the actual documentation that I have described.-TSG 
 
 
Supporting Facts, Assumptions and Curious Questions: 
 
I would speculate that in 1989 through 1993, as the downtown real estate market was 
falling, there were perhaps reasons to suspect that the WTC owners might have 
contemplated the first bombing. After Battery Park attracted their biggest tenants, the 
property quickly lost it’s viability. (At the time, Geoff Parker reported that a friend of 
his was given a whole floor in the South tower to use as a drumming studio, for free!) 
By 1996, the internet had decentralized the financial industry, further diminishing the 
lease/return opportunities of this property. ( I don’t know the actual math, maybe it 
was going up again.) 
 
The building cost about $1.5B to build and was worth about $4. to 5.B at its peak. 
But, it would have cost about $20B to un-build it in 2010 dollars, or as it neared 
its 1/2 ‘safe’ life. Obviously it HAD to be imploded and there was never going to 
be a ‘break-even’ point for the owners. 
 
The first attempted attack was evidently planned to kill all of us, or at least scatter the 
group’s paperwork. Building #7 was actually a protective scaffold, designed to catch 
the debris as the North building fell. Why did they plan it so only this building would 
fall, particularly northward? Would they receive the insurance then appeal for a 
government bail-out to de-construct the main tower, sometime later? 
 
Minoru Yamasaki was working for the Saudi’s when he took on this project. After its 
completion in 1973, he returned to Saudi Arabia to consult on other projects. 
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Eventually, in 1986, he did the Saudi Financial Center. Noteworthy, if I remember, 
because of its triangular super-rigid looking tower, also attributed to S.O.M. In 
interviews he appears to be a gracious and spiritually honest man. We certainly felt his 
pain when he was interviewed on TV. 
 
Minoru befriended Richard Roth Sr., while working for Brown & Root in Chicago. 
Roth was noted for his contribution on the „Columbia Exposition“ Project. They 
shared many arts & crafts stylistic attitudes. Richard Roth Jr. was in charge of his 
dad’s firm when he retired. He is friends with lots of conservatives. (Carnegie Mellon 
group, like his dad.) He is friends with Saul Steinberg, Stephen Roth, Jeffrey Levine, 
lots of famous Jewish folks with dubious Israeli connections. 
 
When the building was sold to Silversteen, Stephen Roth, (with Vernado Realty) 
worked to take the bid as high as possible, offering $750,M more than the next lower 
bidder. Did he even have the money? Two months before the official auction, he 
withdrew the ridiculous bid. Could this have been a mistake on his part? 
 
Isn’t this the same Stephen Roth who runs the „Anti-defamation League“ in Israel. 
They track all persons who threaten the sovereignty of Israel. Interestingly enough it 
was established in 1991! Suddenly, after that, there were lots of reported ‘neo-nazi’ 
groups springing up in Germany and the UK. His group gave rise to the importance of 
stopping these ‘Right- wing terrorists’ at all costs, and he may serve as the eyes and 
ears for the CIA, or Massoud. Either way, he’s got to be an insider with Sharon. 
 
Tom-Scott Gordon 
Architectural Photographer/currently A/V Systems Integrator 
penmanchip@hotmail.com 
  
Comment  
From Tom-Scott Gordon  
1-19-4 
Hi Jeff - 
You may remember the transcript that I sent you about a pre-existing ‘demolition plan’ 
for the Twin Trade Towers. I have been actively pursuing the development of that set 
of documents into a ‘corroborated’ story. I have received help from Michael @ From 
the Wilderness and Jeff King, another important 9-11 cover-up researcher. I think you 
should have one of them on your program immediately! 
 
I would like for you to ‘add this comment’ to the end of your story, something that I 
believe to be just as important as Mr. Silverstein’s ‘smoking gun,’ -itself. This appears 
in the context of my tedious narrative, and in some ways ‘certifies,’ these events. I will 
highlight the quote now, but my full story will not be ready to send to the commission 
for days. 
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It’s more than a smoking gun. In my 25+ years exposure to all sorts of architects, I 
have never heard such a damaging comment as the one I’m about to tell you. Not to 
the design process, the people, nor the conflicts involved in achieving our profession’s 
crowning achievements. It was like seeing a mother with her newborn child, as she 
quietly ends it’s precious life! 
 
„There I was, fantastically excited to be looking down on the steel framing, as 
Building #7 was finally ‘topped out.’ To my right, stood one of the project architects, 
who said; (then turned, and left the room without looking any of us in the eye): 
„Building seven. -The building that never should have been built.“ 
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3. The Legalities of the Mega-Swindle 
a) Ownership Title and Mortgages of WTC7 

 
Ownership title to the land and buildings of building 7 and the entire World Trade Center 
reportedly was in the hands of the New York Port Authority, a public agency. We read 
about its governance, http://www.panynj.gov/:  
 
The Port Authority is a financially self-supporting public agency that receives no tax revenues 
from any state or local jurisdiction and has no power to tax. It relies almost entirely on revenues 
generated by facility users, tolls, fees, and rents. The Governor of each state appoints six 
members to the Board of Commissioners, subject to state senate approval. Board Members 
serve as public officials without pay for overlapping six-year terms. The Governors retain the 
right to veto the actions of Commissioners from his or her own state. Board meetings are public. 
 
The Board of Commissioners appoints an Executive Director to carry out the agency’s policies 
and manage the day-to-day operations. 
 
Larry Silverstein through his group of investment companies under the roof of Silverstein 
Properties, Inc., 
http://www.silversteinproperties.com  
held what is described as a „long-term lease” of WTC building 7.  
 
Silverstein reportedly was the developer of building 7 when it was built by Daniel 
Tishman in the 1980s (completed 1985).  
 
The actual financial control reigns were not, however, in the 
hand of Larry Silverstein alone. He had to rely on a secretive 
group of Wall Street financier-politicos under the roof of an 
investment company, the Blackstone Group. Source for the 
following information overleaf: 
http://www.serendipity.li/wot/blackstone_group.html  
This information leads back into the same elite Wall Street 
political finance circles who have the close CIA affiliations as 
seen in part one above (insider trading). 
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Source URL for the following: 

http://www.serendipity.li/wot/blackstone_group.html
 
 

The Blackstone Group 
http://www.blackstone.com/

„In 1985 Blackstone opened its first small office with a staff of four, including the two founders 
Peter G. Peterson and Stephen A. Schwarzman and a balance sheet of $400,000.”  
„Strictly friendly private equity investing in corporate partnerships has been a signature form of 
investing for The Blackstone Group since 1987 and accounts for 69% of the firm’s private equity 
investments in terms of equity capital invested. The firm, investing side-by-side with 32 
corporations and their management teams, has invested over $3.5 billion in such partnerships 
with a total transaction value of more than $40 billion. Such partnerships have included AT&T 
(Bresnan transaction), AOL Time Warner (Six Flags transaction), Union Carbide, Union Pacific 
(CNW transaction), USX, Vivendi, IBM, BP Amoco, Arthur Andersen and many others.” 

Blackstone Group & 7 World Trade Center
„New York, NY October 17, 2000: Blackstone Real Estate Advisors, the global real estate 
investment and management arm of The Blackstone Group, L.P., announced today that it has 
purchased, from Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association, the participating mortgage 
secured by 7 World Trade Center, a commercial office complex controlled by real estate 
developer Larry Silverstein” (source) 
„But before the building can rise further than the substation, major financing issues have to be 
resolved by Larry Silverstein, who controls the long-term lease on 7 World Trade Center as well 
as the World Trade Center complex. The good news for Mr. Silverstein is that the company that 
insured 7 World Trade, Industrial Risk Insurers, has indicated that it will make a full payment 
under its $861 million policy. But it’s not clear whether Mr. Silverstein can use those proceeds to 
start building without first reaching an agreement with the mortgage holder on 7 World Trade 
Center, Blackstone Real Estate Advisors.” (source) 

Blackstone – Kissinger McLarty Associates – American International Group 
Kissinger McLarty Associates has a „strategic alliance” with the Blackstone Group. The 
Blackstone Group describes their relationship thus: 
„Blackstone’s alliance with Kissinger McLarty Associates is designed to help provide financial 
advisory services to corporations seeking high-level strategic advice. The relationship was 
announced in 2000 and recently completed its first strategic advisory assignment on behalf of a 
NYSE-listed company.” (source) 
Infact the alliance also incorporates Maurice Greenberg’s American International Group, as per 
this press release on February 21st 2000: 
„American International Group, Inc. (AIG), The Blackstone Group L. P. and Kissinger 
Associates Inc. announced the establishment of a new venture to provide financial 
advisory services to corporations seeking high-level independent strategic advice. […] 
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The venture will operate globally and will take advantage of the existing relationships 
between the partners: 
- AIG has an ownership interest in Blackstone and is an investor in several of Blackstone’s private equity 
funds; 
- AIG and Blackstone have a joint venture, specializing in restructuring and M&A advisory services in 
selected Asian countries; 
- Henry Kissinger chairs both AIG’s International Advisory Board and the advisory boards of several 
AIG-sponsored Infrastructure Funds. 
The AIG-Blackstone-Kissinger Associates venture recently completed its first advisory assignment on 
behalf of a New York Stock Exchange listed U.S. company.” (source) (note: „M&A” means „Mergers 
and Acquisitions”) 
Indeed: „In 1998, American International Group („AIG“) acquired a 7% non-voting interest in 
The Blackstone Group for $150 million and committed to invest $1.2 billion in future 
Blackstone-sponsored funds.” (source) And Maurice Greenberg sits on Blackstone’s Domestic 
Advisory Board. 

(& an anecdotal story about Blacktone’s Peter G Peterson & Enron) 
„When Enron executives started dumping stock, and the warning signs that Enron was in deep 
trouble were everyone except on the evening news, Winokur and Rubin called Peter Fisher, the 
current undersecretary of the Treasury to determine the practicality of artificially supporting 
Enron’s credit rating in order to enable Enron to borrow enough money to stave off bankruptcy. 
Fisher, a former New York Fed governor, called his former boss, Peter G. Peterson, the New 
York Fed chairman —and the current chairman of the Council on Foreign Relations. Peterson 
was also a top Enron financial advisor through his own company, Blackstone Group. Peterson 
was also against the idea of artificially supporting a phony credit rating for Enron.” (source) 

Chairman 

Peter G Peterson 
76 years old 
Chairman and Co-Founder of The Blackstone Group.  
Chairman (and „Federal Reserve Agent”) of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York  
Chairman of the Council on Foreign Relations
Founding Chairman of the Institute for International Economics (Washington, D.C.) 
founding President of The Concord Coalition.  
Chairman of the Advisory Board of Sony Corporation
Director of Sirius Satellite Radio
Director of Transtar, Inc
Special Limited Advisory Partner – Millenium Technology Ventures
Chairman of Capital Risk Group LLC – see also these links. 
Chairman of The Conference Board‘s „Blue-Ribbon Commission on Public Trust and Private 
Enterprise”  (also) 
Trustee of the Committee for Economic Development   --- May 16th 2001 awarded „Excellence 
in Public Policy Award” by CED 
Trustee of the Japan Society  
Director of The Nixon Center
Director of the National Bureau of Economic Research
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Trustee of the Museum of Modern Art
Director of the Public Agenda Foundation  
Honorary Committee Member – Womens Economic Round Table
Advisory Board – Common Good
Member of BENS – Business Executives for National Security 
Member of the Caux Round Table
Until recently was a director of ImClone (but only for 3 months) – appointed (11/16/01)
Director of Rockefeller Center Properties  - essay about: 
http://viking.som.yale.edu/will/web_pages/will/cases/rockctr.html  
Author: Gray Dawn: How the Coming Age Wave Will Transform America - and the World – 
click here for chapter one
Author: Will America Grow Up Before It Grows Old?
Author: Facing Up: How to Rescue the Economy from Crushing Debt and Restore the American 
Dream
Born on June 5, 1926, Mr. Peterson graduated from Northwestern University with a B.S. (summa 
cum laude) in 1947. He received his Masters in Business Administration with honors in 1951 
from the University of Chicago. For several years, he was a part-time member of the faculty of 
the Graduate School of Business of the University of Chicago and co-edited a book of readings 
entitled Readings in Market Organizations and Price Policies. 
Mr. Peterson’s business career began in 1948 with Market Facts, where he became Executive 
Vice President of the firm in 1952. That same year, he joined the advertising agency of McCann-
Erickson, as Director of Marketing Services. He became Vice President at the age of 27, then 
General Manager of the Chicago office, and a Director of the company, coordinating services to 
regional offices. 
In 1958, Mr. Peterson joined Bell & Howell as Executive Vice President and Director. In 1961, 
at the age of 34, he was elected President. In 1963, he became Chief Executive Officer and held 
that position until February 1971. From 1962 to 1971, corporate sales more than doubled and 
operating earnings more than quadrupled. 
Just prior to joining Lehman Brothers, Mr. Peterson served as Ambassador and Personal 
Representative to President Richard Nixon. He was named Secretary of Commerce by President 
Nixon on January 27, 1972. At that time, the President also asked Mr. Peterson to assume the 
Chairmanship of his National Commission on Productivity. During 1972, Mr. Peterson was also 
the U.S. Chairman of the U.S.-Soviet Commercial Commission that negotiated the 
comprehensive trade, EX- IM credits, arbitration, copyright and lend-lease agreements that were 
signed in November of 1972. He joined the White House staff in February of 1971 as the 
Assistant to the President for International Economic Affairs. In that role, he authored the 
reports, „The U.S. in a Changing World Economy“ and „A Foreign Economic Perspective.“ 
Mr. Peterson was Chairman and CEO of Lehman Brothers (1973 - 1977) and after the merger 
with Kuhn, Loeb, became Chairman and CEO of Lehman Brothers, Kuhn, Loeb Inc. (1977 - 
1984). During his tenure, Mr. Peterson led the firm from significant operating losses to five 
consecutive years of record profits with the return on equity among the highest in the investment 
banking industry. 
He is founding President of The Concord Coalition, a bipartisan citizens group he organized in 
1992, together with Senator Warren Rudman and the late Senator Paul Tsongas (who was 
recently succeeded by Senator Sam Nunn.) The Concord Coalition is dedicated to building a 
constituency for fiscal responsibility. In 1982, he was a founding member of the Bi-Partisan 
Budget Appeal, an organization of 500 heads of major corporations, accounting, law and banking 
firms, university and former public officials. 
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In February of 1994, President Clinton named Mr. Peterson as a member of the Bipartisan 
Commission on Entitlement and Tax Reform co-chaired by Senators Kerrey and Danforth. 
He has received a number of awards including a U.S. Junior Chamber of Commerce award 
naming him one of the „Ten Outstanding Men“ in the nation. In 1962, Life Magazine cited him 
as one of the 100 most important Americans under 40. In 1973, the Harvard Business School 
Club of Chicago named him „Business Statesman of the Year“ and he received the Gotshal 
Award for „Exceptional Service in the Field of International Arbitration.“ In 1976, Mr. Peterson 
received the Phoenix House Outstanding Public Service Award and in 1980, the New York 
Board of Trade Award for business leadership and public service. In 1981, he was designated 
honoree of the Cathedral of St. John the Divine’s „Spirit of the City“ award and the American 
Jewish Congress’ Stephen Wise Award. In June 1983, Mr. Peterson received the University of 
Chicago Alumni Medal (its highest honor) „...for extraordinary distinction in one’s field of 
specialization and extraordinary service to society.“ His Atlantic Monthly cover article, „The 
Morning After“ (October 1987) received the National Magazine Award for the Best Public 
Interest Article of the Year in 1987. In 1989, he was appointed as an American representative on 
the U.S.-Japan „Wise Men’s“ Group. He received the Man of Vision Award in January 1994, 
and the Nebraskalander Award in February 1994. 
He was formerly a Director of Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing Company, Federated 
Department Stores, Black & Decker Manufacturing Company, General Foods Corporation, 
RCA, The Continental Group, and such companies as Cities Service. 

** 

President & CEO 

Stephen A. Schwarzman 
56 years old. 
Stephen A. Schwarzman is President, CEO and Co-Founder of The Blackstone Group. He has 
been involved in all phases of the firm’s development since its founding in 1985 and approves all 
capital commitments by the firm. Mr. Schwarzman began his career at Lehman Brothers, where 
he was elected Managing Director in 1978 at the age of 31. He was engaged principally in the 
firm’s mergers and acquisitions business from 1977 to 1984, and served as Chairman of the 
firm’s Mergers & Acquisitions Committee in 1983 and 1984. 
Mr. Schwarzman is a member of the Council on Foreign Relations and is on the boards of 
various organizations, including the New York Public Library, New York City Ballet, the 
Harvard Business School Visiting Committee, the JP Morgan Chase National Advisory Board 
and the New York City Partnership Board of Directors. He is also a Director of various 
companies. 
Mr. Schwarzman holds a BA from Yale University and an MBA from Harvard Business School. 
He has served as an adjunct professor at the Yale School of Management. 
Director – New York City Investment Fund
Board of Executive Advisors – The Chief Executive Leadership Institute
Member – Business Executives for National Security

Blackstone’s Domestic Advisory Board 

(Chaired by Peter G. Peterson) 
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Marshall A. Cohen 
Mr. Marshall Cohen O.C., Q.C., Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP 
67 years old 
Mr. Cohen retired as President and Chief Executive Officer of The Molson Companies Limited 
in 1996. He served with the Government of Canada for 15 years, including appointments as 
Deputy Minister of Industry, Trade & Commerce, Energy, Mines & Resources, and Finance. He 
is a director of a number of public companies and a member of various non-profit boards and 
organizations. 
Mr. Cohen is a former International Councillor for The Center for Strategic & International 
Studies, a member of the Executive Committee of The British-North American Committee and a 
former member of The Trilateral Commission. He was also the Chairman of the International 
Trade Advisory Committee for the Government of Canada and is Chairman of the Advisory 
Council of the Schulich School of Business at York University. 
A graduate of the University of Toronto, Osgoode Hall Law School and York University, Mr. 
Cohen was called to the bar in 1960. Mr. Cohen received the Order of Canada in 1993. (source) 
Director of Barrick Gold Corporation (since 1988) 
Director of American International Group Inc
Director of Lafarge Corporation
Director of The Toronto-Dominion Bank  
Dean’s Advisory Council of Schulich School of Business at York University, Canada 

** 

Maurice R. Greenberg 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, AIG 
76 years old 
#106 on Forbes Worlds Richest People  
Net Worth: $3.4 bil 
Mr Greenberg is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of American International Group, Inc. 
(AIG), a leading global insurance and financial services organization operating in 130 countries 
and jurisdictions worldwide (click here for history of the company). He was President and Chief 
Executive Officer of AIG from 1967 to 1989, when he became Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer. Mr Greenberg joined AIG in 1960 and was elected President of its American Home 
Assurance Company subsidiary in 1962.  
Mr Greenberg served in the U.S. Army in Europe during World War II and in the Korean 
conflict, rising to the rank of Captain. He is a recipient of the Bronze Star. He received his pre-
law certificate from the University of Miami and an LL.B. from New York Law School in 1950. 
He was admitted to the New York Bar in 1953. He has been granted honorary degrees from a 
number of institutions, including New York Law School, Brown University and Middlebury 
College.  
He is the Former Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Director of the Federal Reserve Bank of New 
York
Within the AIG Group, he is President, Chief Execurtive Officer and Director of C.V. Starr and 
Co., Inc. He is also a Director of Starr International Company, Inc. (‘SICO’), private holding 
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companies, and a Director of International Lease Finance Corporation (‘ILFC’) (a wholly owned 
subsidiary of AIG).  
Chairman of the Board for Transatlantic Holdings
Member of the President’s Advisory Committee for Trade Policy and Negotiations (ACTPN) 
Member of the Corporate Accountablility & Listing Standards Committee of the NYSE
Honorary Vice Chairman of the Council on Foreign Relations 
Member of the Trilateral Commission 
Member of The Bilberberg Group (attendee of 1991 meeting) 
Former Vice Chairman, Center for Strategic and International Studies
Chairman of The Nixon Center
Chairman of The Starr Foundation
Vice Chairman of the US-ASEAN Business Council
Founding Chairman of the US - Phillipine Business Committee
Director of the United Nations Association of the United States of America (UNA-USA) 
Director of the Institute for International Economics
Director of the Atlantic Council of the United States
Trustee of the United States Council for International Business
Trustee Emeriti of the Rockefeller University
Member of the Hong Kong Chief Executive’s Council of International Advisors
Director of The National Committee on United States-China Relations
Director of the US-China Business Council
Member of the Business Roundtable
Trustee of the Manhattan Institute
Trustee of the Asia Society
Chairman of the Congressional Economic Leadership Institute
Chairman of the Starr Foundation
Director of the John F Kennedy Center for the Performing Arts
Honorary Trustee of the Business Council for International Understanding
Member of CECP (Corporate Philanthropy for a New Century) 
Member of The National Coalition on Asia and International Studies in the Schools
Patron of the American Australian Association
Board of Overseers of Weill Medical College of Cornell University
Chairman Emeritus of the Board of Trustees of New York-Presbyterian Hospital
Life Trustee of the New York University
Director of Project HOPE
Bush „Pioneer” (raised $100,000 + for his 2000 Presidential election campaign) 
Sept. 19th 2002: Awarded „Civil Society Vision Award” from the American Friends of the Czech 
Republic. 
2001: Awarded „Person of the Year” by the Brazilian-American Chamber of Commerce
Awarded ‘The Eisenhower Service to Democracy Awards’ from The American Assembly 
2002: Awarded the „Albert Gallatin Medal” by New York University 
Sons: Evan and Jeffrey 

** 
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Reed E. Hundt 
Senior Advisor to McKinsey & Co., Former Chairman, Federal Communications Commission 
54 years old 
Reed E. Hundt is a senior advisor on information industries to McKinsey & Company, a 
worldwide management consulting firm. Hundt has also been a special advisor since June 2000 
to the Blackstone Group, a private equity firm. He has been a venture partner since 1999 at 
Benchmark Capital, a venture capital firm that specializes in investments in high-tech 
companies.  
In his four years as Chairman of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) from 1993 to 
1997, Mr. Hundt presided over the implementation of the historic Telecommunications Act of 
1996. He helped negotiate the World Trade Organization Telecommunications agreement, 
opening markets in 69 countries to competition and dropping barriers to foreign investment. He 
is especially proud of his role in making the largest single national commitment to K-12 
education in America’s history: the Snowe-Rockefeller program that dedicates more than $2 
billion annually to connect all classrooms in the country to the Internet. Under Mr. Hundt’s 
administration, the FCC raised more than $12 billion for the U.S. Treasury through competition-
creating spectrum auctions. He led the FCC into the Information Age by putting every person in 
the FCC on the Internet. 
From 1997 to 2000, he was a principal of Charles Ross Partners, LLC. From 1999 to 2001, he 
served as a member of the Intel Policy Advisory Board.  
In 1998, Mr. Hundt was awarded Children Now’s inaugural „Voice for Children Leadership 
Award.” He received the „Distinguished Service Award” from the National Association of 
Elementary School Principals and the National Association of Secondary School Principals „for 
his ongoing commitment to education.” He earned the „Public Service Award to Children” from 
Parents’ Choice for being „a staunch advocate for children... [with] the foresight to work towards 
access for all children to educational television, computer skills, and 21st century technology.” 
He received the „Helen Keller Outstanding Public Service Award” from the American 
Foundation for the Blind „for his exemplary efforts to include all Americans, especially those 
who are blind or visually impaired, in the communications revolution and for creating the FCC’s 
Disabilities Issues Task Force.” He has also been Co-Chairman of The Forum on 
Communications and Society at The Aspen Institute. 
Prior to his position as Chairman of the FCC, Mr. Hundt was a partner in the Washington DC 
office of Latham & Watkins, a national and international law firm. His work involved legal and 
regulatory issues in emerging technologies, such as cellular telephones, direct broadcast satellite, 
and interactive television. 
Mr. Hundt is a magna cum laude graduate of Yale College, earning a Bachelor of Arts with 
Exceptional Distinction in History (1969). He is also a graduate of Yale Law School (1974) 
where he was a member of the executive board of the Yale Law Journal. He clerked for the late 
Chief Judge Harrison L. Winter of the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit, and is a 
member of the District of Columbia, Maryland, and California bars. 
Reed E. Hundt is the author of the book entitled „You Say You Want a Revolution: A Story of 
Information Age Politics” published by the Yale University Press in March 2000 (which is now 
available free online). He lives in Chevy Chase, Maryland with his wife and their three children. 
Principal of Charles Ross Partners, LLC 
Director of Intel
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Director of Allegiance Telecom, Inc
Director of Northpoint Communications, Inc
Director of Novell Inc
Director of Brience
Director of Megisto Systems
Director of Phone.com, Inc (?)
Director of Global Connect Partners, Inc (?)
Director of Core Express, Inc (?)  
Director of Sigma Networks Inc (?)
Director of Expedia
Venture Partner at Benchmark Capital
Special Advisor to Madison Dearborn Partners
Advisor to Sonexis
Trustee of the American Institute for Contemporary German Studies
Former director of Ascend Communications, before it was bought out by Lucent. 
Former director of Sigma Networks, which was liquidised in January 2002. („It raised a stunning 
$155 million in equity investment from the likes of Frontenac, Benchmark Capital, Epoch 
Partners, Oak Investment Partners, and Salomon Smith Barney. It also raised $290 million in 
debt, primarily in vendor financing from Cisco Systems, Comdisco, and EMC. One crucial 
reason Sigma was able to raise all that money is because its chairman was Reed Hundt, the 
former chairman of the U.S. Federal Communications Commission.”, Red Herring, March 13th 
2002) 

** 

Robert D. Kennedy 
Former Chairman and CEO, Union Carbide 
69 years old  
Union Carbide Corporation 
1955-1956 Edgewater Research Laboratory, National Carbon Division 
1956-1963 Sales and Marketing, National Carbon Division 
1963-1971 Marketing Management, National Carbon Division 
1971-1975 European Products Director, National Carbon Division 
1975-1977 Senior Vice President, Union Carbide, Europe 
1977-1982 President, Linde Division 
1981-1982 Senior Vice President 
1982-1985 Executive Vice President 
1985-1986 President and COO, Chemicals and Plastics 
1985 Member, Board of Directors 
1986-1995 President and CEO 
1986-1995 Chairman of the Board 
(source) 
Article about Union Carbide (which has since merged with Dow Chemical) and a page about the 
Bhopal disaster, whose chairman at the time (1984) is still a wanted fugitive. 
Mr. Kennedy was retired from 1995 until March 1998 when he became chairman of UCAR 
International, Inc. a position he held until September 1999. 
Currently: 
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Director of International Paper Company (since 1999) 
Director of Chase Industries (since 2000) 
Director of Kmart Corporation (since 1996) 
Director of Sunoco
Director of Hercules, Inc
Advisory Board of RFE Investment Partners
Trustee of Cornell University

** 

Charles P. Lazarus 
Founder and Chairman Emeritus, Toys „R“ Us 
78 years old  
„At age 25, Charles Lazarus converted a bicycle repair shop into a baby furniture store in 
Washington D.C. in 1948. Catering to his customers needs, he opening his first toy supermarket 
in 1957, adopting the warehouse style in 1958. Wanting to expand further, Lazarus sold his 
company in 1966 but remained in control. Unfortunately, the parent company went bankrupt in 
1974. Toy manufacturers were offering generous credit terms and he managed to pull the 
company out of bankruptcy within four years under the new name „Toys ‘R’ Us.” 
The company grew steadily after that until a court ruling in 1997, which accused Toys R Us of 
conspiring with toy manufacturers to keep prices too high for warehouse clubs like Costco to 
compete. Since then, it has experienced a decline in market share; however, the company plans 
to downsize and remodel (abandoning the warehouse style) in 2000.” 
Director/Chairman Emeritus of Toys R Us
Director of Loral Space and Communication

** 

Bernard L. Schwartz 
Chairman and CEO, Loral Space & Communications 
He is Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of Loral Space & 
Communications Ltd., a high-technology company concentrating on satellite manufacturing and 
satellite-based services. He served as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive 
Officer of Loral Corporation, a leading defense electronics business, from 1972 to 1996. Mr. 
Schwartz also serves as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of K&F Industries, Inc., a 
worldwide supplier of aircraft braking systems. In addition, Mr. Schwartz is a member of the 
Advisory Council at the Paul H. Nitze School of Advanced International Studies at John Hopkins 
University where he established a chair in political economy, a trustee of Mount Sinai-New York 
University Medical Center, a trustee of Thirteen/WNET and vice chairman of the New York 
Film Society. 
„He has historically been big supporters of Bill Clinton and his party. This year he gave 
$1,317,000 -- nearly every penny of it to the Democrats. In 1997 Schwartz celebrated his 71st 
birthday with the Clintons at the White House. The next year, he became the focus of a 
controversy when Clinton’s critics suggested that the president had rubberstamped Loral’s 
satellite launches in China. Mother Jones reported that the company had apparently ignored 
security procedures by faxing Beijing a draft report about a rocket crash that destroyed a Loral 
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satellite (see „Heavy Metal„). An extensive federal investigation into the matter has since 
concluded there was „not a scintilla of evidence -- or information -- that the president was 
corruptly influenced by Bernard Schwartz,“ according to an internal document obtained by the 
Los Angeles Times. 
Congress responded to the controversy by transferring regulatory authority over satellite exports 
from the Commerce Department to the State Department, which was perceived to be less 
sympathetic to companies like Loral. Prudential Securities analyst Charles Gabriel predicted 
before the election that a Gore win could „reopen doors that were closed in the wake“ of the 
scandal, boosting Loral’s stock. 
The company’s profits have long been tied to the government. The Loral Corporation, once a 
major defense contractor, changed its name to Loral Space & Communications and its business 
to telecommunications during the 1990s. Over the past year, Globalstar, a satellite 
communications company in which Loral claims a 38 percent stake (and of which Schwartz 
serves as president and CEO), has halted payments on its debts and is struggling to avoid 
bankruptcy, a fate that befell its competitor, Iridium.” (Mother Jones, March 5th 2001) 
A suit was filed against  Schwartz and the Clintons by Judicial Watch, alledging „that Loral has 
been harmed because of its involvement in campaign finance and national security breaches.” 
„Globalstar reported first quarter losses and the removal from service of  three satellites 
experiencing operational problems, disrupting service to some subscribers for a few minutes 
each day […] Bernard L. Schwartz stepped down May 15 as chairman of Globalstar LP and Olof 
Lundberg was named as his successor. […] Schwartz, chairman of Loral Space & 
Communications, will remain on Globalstar’s general partners committee, while Loral will 
continue as managing general partner […] Blackstone Group, has been retained by Globalstar 
to find a way out of the company’s financial troubles.” (Globalstar press release, May 21st 2000) 
Chairman and CEO of K & F Industries
Director of Globalstar
Director of First Data Corporation (since 1992) 
Director of Loral Orion (now Loral CyberStar) 
Director of Satelites Mexicanos S.A. de C.V
Former director of Reliance Group Holdings, which filed for bankrupcy in 2001 

** 

Anthony M. Solomon 
Former President, Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
82 years old 
Dr. Solomon has had a relationship with Harvard for several decades, completing graduate work 
in economics in 1948, teaching at the Harvard Business School from 1961 to 1963, and currently 
serving as a member of the Harvard University Art Museums Collections Committee, in addition 
to serving on committees of other prestigious arts organizations outside of Harvard. After 
completing an undergraduate degree at the University of Chicago, Anthony Solomon was 
director-general of finance of Southwest Iran from 1942 to 1946, having been appointed to the 
American financial mission to Iran by President Roosevelt on the recommendation of Winston 
Churchill. From 1953 to 1961, he served in Mexico City as president of the Rosa Blanca 
Products Corporation. In 1963, he chaired the U.S. Agency for International Development 
(USAID) mission to Bolivia and also served as a special consultant to President Kennedy as 
chairman of the mission to the U.S. Trust Territory, Pacific Islands. From 1963 to 1965, he was 
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deputy assistant secretary of state for Latin America and deputy assistant administrator for 
USAID for Latin America; then, from 1965 to 1969, he was assistant secretary of state for 
economic affairs. From 1969 to 1972, he headed the International Investment Corporation for 
Yugoslavia, in London. He returned to U.S. government service in 1972, as an advisor to the 
chairman of the U.S. House of Representatives’ Ways and Means Committee (1972-1973). In 
1977 he was appointed undersecretary of the Treasury for monetary affairs, a post he held until 
1980, when he was named president and chief executive officer of the Federal Reserve Bank of 
New York, where he served until 1985. He was chairman of S.G. Warburg (U.S.A.) between 
1986 and 1989.  
He has served as Chairman of The Blackstone Alternate Asset Management Advisory Board 
since 1994. Mr. Solomon also has served as Chairman of The Europe Fund, a closed end fund 
investing in Europe, since 1990 and of The United Kingdom Fund, a closed end fund investing in 
the United Kingdom, since 1987. Mr. Solomon has served as an economic advisor to Banca 
Comerciale Italiana since 1985 
Director of Alexandria RE Equities (since 1994) 
Director of Urban America
Member of the Council on Foreign Relations. 
Chairman (executive committee) – Institute for International Economics (of which Peter 
Peterson is the Chairman) 

** 

John A. Young 
Retired CEO and President, Hewlett-Packard 
69 years old 
Mr. Young was the Vice-Chairman of the Board of Novell, Inc. from 1997 to 2001. He was 
Vice-Chairman of the Board of SmithKline Beechan PLC from 1998 until its merger with Glaxo 
Wellcome in 2000. From 1993 to 1997, Mr. Young served on a variety of corporate and non- 
profit boards. 
In 1992, Mr. Young retired from his position as President and Chief Executive Officer of 
Hewlett- Packard Company. In over 30 years with HP, Mr. Young worked in increasing 
positions of responsibility, including 15 years as President and CEO. In 1983, Mr. Young was 
appointed by former President Reagan to be chairman of the President’s Commission on 
Industrial Competitiveness, which was established to explore means of improving the 
competitive posture of U.S. industry at home and abroad and later served four years as Chairman 
of the Council on Competitiveness, a private-sector group chartered to continue the goal of 
improving U.S. competitiveness. In 1985 he was awarded the „National Leadership Award” by 
the US Council for International Business. He received a B.S.E.E. from Oregon State University 
and an M.B.A. from the Stanford Graduate School of Business.  
Director of ChevronTexaco
Director of GlaxoSmithKline plc
Director of Lucent Technologies Inc (since 1996) 
Director of Affymetrix
Director of Agere Systems
Director of Ciphergen Biosystems Inc
Director of Fluidigm Corp
Director of Perlegen Sciences Inc
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Director of Shaman
Founding member of the Council on Competitiveness
Member of the Presidents Committee of Advisors on Science & Technology
He is a former director of Wells Fargo, Novell, Smart Valley, Inc and Weyerhaeuser 

Blackstone’s International Advisory Board 

(Co-Chaired by Sir Ronald Grierson and Peter G. Peterson) 
  

The Rt. Hon. Lord Kenneth Baker 
Former U.K. Senior Cabinet Minister And Member of Parliament, (United Kingdom) 

** 

Roland Berger 
Founder, Roland Berger Strategy Consultants GmbH (Germany) 

** 

Count Ruy Brandolini 
Chairman, Exor S.A. (Italy) 

** 

Sir Ronald Grierson 
Former Vice Chairman, General Electric Company plc, (United Kingdom) 

** 

Jan-Michiel Hessels 
Chairman of the Supervisory Board, Euronext N.V., (Netherlands) 

** 

Pedro Ballvé Lantero 
President, Campofrio Alimentación, S.A., President, Telepizza, S.A, (Spain) 

** 
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Maurice Lévy 
Chairman, Publicis/FCB Communication (France) 

** 

Ivan Pictet 
Managing Partner, Banque Pictet & Cie. (Switzerland) 

** 

Dr. Cuno Pümpin 
Professor of Management and Company Director, University of St. Gallen (Switzerland) 

** 

Jacob Wallenberg 
Chairman, Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken (Sweden) 
Now left: 
Roger C. Altman  
Chairman, Evercore Partners Inc 
Deputy Secretary of Treasury (1993-1995); Assistant Secretary of Treasury (1977-1981) 
  
Roger Altman is Chairman of Evercore Partners Inc, an investment and merchant-banking firm, 
which he co- founded in 1996. Altman was Deputy Treasury Secretary under President Clinton 
from 1993 to 1995, his second tour of duty at the Treasury Department. From 1987 through 
1992, Altman was Vice Chairman of The Blackstone Group, where he led that firm’s merger 
advisory business. Prior to that, he spent 14 years at Lehman Brothers, where he was Managing 
Director, Co-Head of Investment Banking, and member of the Management Committee and the 
Board of Directors. Altman is a member of the President’s Economic Intelligence Advisory 
Board and the Council on Foreign Relations. 

 

This page was saved from a website, Elite Watch 
which has now (2003-11-12 CE) disappeared: 

elitewatch.netfirms.com  

Almost all of that website, however, has been recovered 
and is now to be seen at http://elitewatch.911review.org/  
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Here are some figures about the mortgages: 
 

Blackstone Sets Sights on 7 World Trade Center - 
Blackstone Group looks to win control of 7 World Trade 

Center - Brief Article - Statistical Data Included 
Real Estate Alert,  Oct 9, 2000

 

Blackstone Group could be gearing up to battle developer Larry Silverstein for control of 7 World 
Trade Center. 

Blackstone has quietly acquired Teachers Insurance’s interest in nearly $500 million of debt on 
the heavily leveraged property, which is now owned by a Silverstein partnership. Blackstone 
bought a $242 million second mortgage on the 2 million-square-foot property and assumed 
Teachers’ guarantee on the $250 million first mortgage. 

Blackstone presumably bought the debt because it is angling to gain control of the Lower 
Manhattan tower. However, it is not clear if the firm has worked out an agreement with 
Silverstein or if the developer plans to fight to retain the property. 

The $250 million first mortgage, which was securitized, matures Dec. 1. If Silverstein cannot pay 
off or refinance the loan, Blackstone would be obligated to make good on the payment. It would 
then become the senior creditor and be able to begin foreclosure proceedings. 

Silverstein may have a hard time lining up a $500 million refinancing. Teachers originally 
financed the property in 1987, when it was constructed. The building’s value subsequently 
dropped when the real estate market crashed, and has not fully rebounded. Teachers split the debt 
into two chunks in 1993 and securitized the senior portion as a way to remove it from its books. 
But the insurer was required to provide a guarantee. 

The 47-story tower is nearly fully leased. Salomon Smith Barney occupies about half of the 
property, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, ITT-Hartford and American Express 
among the other prominent tenants. Average rents in the building are among the highest in lower 
Manhattan - in the neighborhood of $60/sf. 

COPYRIGHT 2000 Harrison Scott Publications, Inc. 
COPYRIGHT 2001 Gale Group 

 
From Institutional Real Estate, Inc. written for the time: 9-11-1: 
 
Silverstein Properties will experience one of the disaster’s hardest economic hits. Just 
last April, the private developer beat out Vornado Property Trust (NYSE: VNO) for the 
right to pay $3.2 billion for a 99-year net-lease contract on the Trade Center complex. 
The WTC contract called for Westfield Holdings to lease and run the retail portion of the 
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complex, while Silverstein was responsible for the office sections. According to the Port 
Authority of New York and New Jersey, the partnership made an up-front payment of 
$616 million. Monthly payments, which total roughly $115 million a year, were scheduled 
to begin in August. 
 
In addition, Silverstein owned the 2 million-square-foot 7 World Trade Center building, 
which collapsed several hours after the two towers went down. The 7 World Trade 
Center building also carried a securitized mortgage. The $383 million bond was floated 
by Bank of America in July [2001]. The flow of money to the bonds was dependent on 
the borrower’s ability to make monthly mortgage payments generated by the now non-
existent rental income. 
 
The Port Authority of New York and New Jersey, owner of the WTC, also sold $5.7 
billion of consolidated bonds that included rental income from Trade Center leases as 
security. The WTC provided $347.7 million, or about 13 percent, of the Port Authority’s 
revenue last year. The Port Authority maintains enough reserves to cover at least two 
years of interest and principal payments on these consolidated bonds. 
 
Winning the WTC lease contract was the largest transaction Silverstein had ever been 
involved in, and at the time of the negotiations, many questioned the company’s ability to 
finance the deal. Silverstein was able to cover part of the purchase price through GMAC 
Commercial Mortgage, which floated a $563 million CMBS offering secured by the WTC 
leases. GMAC last week announced its offering was covered by insurance. 
 
Insurance could cover much of the financial loss for both owners and tenants. Published 
reports estimate the attacks will cost insurers anywhere from $15 billion to $40 billion. 
The Trade Center itself reportedly carried insurance on only one tower, believing the 
chances of both collapsing simultaneously too unlikely to insure against, according to 
CNN.com. The Port Authority will only receive an insurance payout of about $1.5 billion, 
far below the $5 billion value assigned to the towers. Westfield Holdings chairman Frank 
Lowy has stated that the retail property under the Twin Towers is fully covered by 
insurance for both capital and loss of income. That may not be the case for the office 
space within the towers or for investors in CMBS. 
 
Bankers and lawyers are trying to determine whether the insurance on the complex 
enables bondholders to recover their money after an act of terrorism. After the terrorist 
bombing of the Center in 1993, some insurance policies excluded acts of terrorism in the 
same way they excluded acts of war. Insurance companies with substantial exposure 
include Swiss Re, Munich Reinsurance Co., Berkshire Hathaway, Lloyd’s of London and 
Chubb Corp. 
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Here are more details about some of the key personnel, from URL: 
 

  
THE FOUR RIDERS OF THE 

9-11 APOCALYPSE 
By Dr. Stefan G. E. Grossmann 

http://www.gallerize.com
June 28, 2004 

  
The four riders of the 9-11 Apocalypse: 

  

 
  

Daddy              George              Jeb                  Marvin 
/                        |                      |                         \ 

NWO,                military            stopping               WTC 
.  CIA,              standdown,     Al Gore votes,        security 
Clinton,           government          seizing                  on  .. 

.        his sons             cover-up         9-11 papers           9-11-1         . 
  
There is a functionality (a division of labor) in the above. Details, additional 
division of labor, helpers, stooges see below: 
  
  

I. THE FLORIDA CONNECTION, JEB BUSH: 
  
NAMES: Jeb Bush, Katherine Harris, Marvin Rosen, the Walt Disney 
Corporation 
  
THEORY: Popular Florida State Governor Lawton Chiles wanted to retire. But 
he said, if that gangster (meaning Jeb Bush) stays around he will stay in office 
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and beat Bush in the gubernatorial election. Then Florida Governor Chiles 
died in office. Tom Heneghan of the Al Gore intelligence network has it that 
there is suspicion that Florida Governor Chiles was snuffed by the Bushies so 
they could instal their candidate Jeb Bush as Florida Governor. In the 
gubernatorial election that followed, Jeb Bush was elected under questionable 
circumstances. 
  
In November and December 2000, Jeb Bush and his Secretary of State 
Katherine Harris manipulated the votes against Albert Gore, Jr. and for 
George W. Bush. Bill Clinton’s 1995/96 campaign finance chief Marvin Rosen 
of the Greenberg Traurig law firm in Miami helped to bribe key Democrats to 
hold still and not support Gore in this election battle. George W. Bush hired 
Rosen’s law firm to represent him against the Democrats in the litigation Gore 
v. Bush, and this is when the corruption of the 2000 presidential election was 
finalized. 
  
Several days before 9-11, Jeb Bush signed an Order placing Florida under 
martial law. On the evening before 9-11, Jeb met his brother George W. in 
southern Florida to discuss final details. In the early morning hours on the day 
after 9-11, Jeb Bush flew in a military transport plane to Venice, Florida and 
seized all the papers of Huffman Aviation, a CIA-front aviation school where 
Mohammed Atta had been trained. When Jeb Bush’s plane took off again, he 
had this key evidence on board with him and it has since disappeared. 
  
The Walt Disney Corp. allegedly has strong and multiple attorney-client ties 
with Marvin Rosen, ties with the CIA and reportedly helped with money and 
contacts in the Florida INC scandal where dozens of Arab types including 9-
11 terror suspects received visas that they by law would not be entitled to. 
  
REFERENCES: Reference is made to the following investigative web sites: 
www.madcowprod.com (web site of Daniel Hopsicker, Florida 9-11 specialist) 
www.cloakanddagger.ca (treason reports by Tom Heneghan) 
www.skolnicksreport.com (Sherman H. Skolnick, all articles) 
www.rense.com (scroll down the left-hand side to find the Skolnick column) 
www.gallerize.com (web site of this author) 
www.defraudingamerica.com (web site of Rodney Stich) 
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II. THE BUILDING SECURITY CONNECTION, MARVIN BUSH: 
  
NAMES: Marvin Bush, Barbara Bush, James Pierce, Securacom, Al Sabah 
family of Kuwait 
  
THEORY: Marvin P. Bush, with other co-conspirators, knew and permitted the 
planting of bombs in the World Trade Center on or around September 8 and 
9, 2001 for the purpose of destroying and pulverizing the World Trade Center 
twin towers on September 11, 2001 and killing several thousand innocent 
people. 
  
On Thursday before 9-11, building security removed the bomb-sniffing dogs 
that had been safeguarding the World Trade Center against bombs. Daria 
Coard, 37, a guard at Tower One, said the security detail had been working 
12-hour shifts for the past two weeks because of numerous phone threats. 
But on Thursday, bomb-sniffing dogs were abruptly removed. 
  
On Saturday and Sunday before 9-11, the power was shut down in the twin 
towers and unidentified technicians „rewired“ the buildings from the 50th floor 
upwards; it is obvious that this could have been an opportunity to plant 
demolition charges to later take the buildings down. 
  
The private security company who was responsible for the security of the 
World Trade Center on 9-11-1 was Securacom, a Bush family company. On 
the Board of Directors of Securacom was Marvin P. Bush, one of President 
George W. Bush’s brothers. This Bush family company was a joint venture 
with the ruling Al Sabah family of Kuwait. 
  
Barbara Bush has admitted that her son Marvin was in Manhattan at the 
World Trade Center when the buildings were taken down as if to supervise. A 
nephew of Barbara Bush, James Pierce, apparently was tipped off and 
vacated his office in the World Trade Center shortly before the very location of 
his office was hit and blown up in a huge explosion during one of the attacks. 
  
On Terror Tuesday, 9-11-1, bombs exploded in the World Trade Center and 
demolished the twin towers, killing over two thousand Americans. This was 
originally explained by Albert Turi, the New York Fire Department Security 
Chief, and numerous bomb experts, confirmed by dozens of eyewitnesses of 
the explosions, the seismic measurements of the explosions, the original 
version of the mainstream TV videos (meticulously documented by Henrik 
Melvang, Denmark), the huge explosion blasts that rocked at least one 
helicopter and blew-up otherwise inexplicably huge dust clouds, etc. The 

56 



bombs were apparently placed in the World Trade Center under the 
responsibility of a security company entitled ”Securacom” that was controlled 
by the Bush family. 
  
REFERENCES: 
http://www.nynewsday.com/news/local/manhattan/wtc/ny-
nyaler122362178sep12,0,7280472,print.story
http://69.28.73.17/thornarticles/powerdown.html
http://www.cloakanddagger.ca  
http://www.bombsinsidewtc.dk/index_news.htm (Henrik Melvang, latest news) 
Background material and further references are in my downloadable e-book 
”T MINUS 9-11, An Insiders’ Attack On America” for sale at 
www.gallerize.com. 
  
  

III. THE CHINA AND TECHNOLOGY CONNECTION: 
  
NAMES: Leon Fuerth, Maurice Hank Greenberg, Henry Kissinger, Janet 
Reno, William Jefferson Clinton 
  
THEORY: AIG/Greenberg is the oldest and largest paying client of Henry 
Kissinger. The two are an apparent Rockefeller family connection with closest 
ties to the Bush-Clinton crime syndicate and the terror of 9-11. The Philippine 
money laundering connection to the Paul Martin shipping company in Canada 
for 9-11 is also apparently under the roof of the AIG/ex-BCCI money 
laundering empire since Maurice ”Hank” Greenberg, the boss of AIG, is the 
personal owner of the Philippine financial system through his insurance 
business machine. 
  
Since the middle of the 1980s, the Bush-CIA shadow government has been 
misusing the top secret U.S. military technology for treasonous purposes. This 
includes, in particular, suppressing this technology for the civilian public 
because this technology already today has made the murderously corrupt oil 
& gas industry technologically obsolete. – Cui bono (who benefits)?? 
  
The top military hightech secrets were sold to China; and weapons systems 
were supplied through China to Daddy Bush’s business partner Saddam 
Hussein. Bill Clinton was a Bush drug stooge from Mena, Arkansas days and 
married Bush’s lawyer Hillary Rodenhurst Clinton. (Like her husband, she is 
posing under a false name.) In 1992, Bush and his cronies had Clinton 
appointed in the Bilderberger meeting as the new U.S. president. Clinton was 
sworn in to the inner circle of the Bush Crime Syndicate as a new partner. 
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Daddy Bush had announced the ”New World Order” (NWO). His new junior 
partner Bill Clinton was to be the Messiah of crime. Thus, the Clinton years 
became years of domestic terrorism: the FBI orchestrated, and a CIA dope 
front paid, Arab fundamentalists to bomb the World Trade Center in February 
1993 as a fitting inauguration gift to the Clintons. There followed the Waco 
massacre, the mini-nuking of the Alfred-P.-Murrah federal courthouse in 
Oklahoma city (covered up by fraudulent government investigating and 
reporting), the missile shoot-down of flight TWA800 (again covered up), the 
shooting-down of several other planes, the faking of a Libyan participation in 
the Lockerbie trial for PanAm103 (the Iranian perpetrators went scott free); 
Clinton refused when Sudan wanted to extradite Osama bin Laden; the FBI 
was hogtied, blindfolded and gagged to stand-by helplessly during the huge 
campaign financing crimes and murderous money laundering in total apathy. 
At the end of his term, Clinton and his locusts had embezzled over $1 trillion 
from the Pentagon alone and consolidated the global Bush-CIA dope 
monopoly. Clinton’s parting shot, apart from demolishing the interiors of the 
White House and stealing assets, was to pardon money launderer and co-
thief Marc Rich. The incumbent, George W. Bush, was quick to announce that 
he would stop all criminal prosecution against his predecessor Bill Clinton. 
  
Once the smoke clears it may well be that the most devastating legacy of the 
Clinton years is the destruction of the Democratic party, the sell-out of the 
Panama Canal and secret nuclear technology to China, and the planning of 9-
11 by the same clique of gangsters since the middle 1990s. 9-11 was a crime 
of high organization, high intelligence and high technology such as requires 
the resources of a large and powerful state to implement. This is a key 
element of the NWO, namely global enslavement through misusing the 
powers and hightech of existing nation states, thus the perversion of nation-
states into slave bins in the interest of a global aristocracy. 
  
The ultra-secret hightech that I just mentioned is post-nuclear but goes back 
to Nazi German science of the second world war. It includes genetics, stealth 
and radar, and as a result of the cold war scalar energy technology. It is 
thousands of times more powerful, and also much more subtle and deceptive, 
than nuclear technology. It is a type of cold fusion with exotic, seemingly 
almost magical results such as remote explosions and so-called ”tulpoids” or 
holographic virtual objects. This scalar technology has been described at 
length by a retired Pentagon analyst, Col. Thomas E. Bearden at his web site. 
  
I have described in my book and articles how President Clinton used an 
advisor of Al Gore, Leon S. Fuerth, a highly intelligent and technocratic 
individual, for his policy of controlling the intelligence agencies and for 
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subverting the U.S. hightech. Clinton signed an Order saying that intelligence 
must be gathered selectively according to further instructions and limitations. 
Clinton signed several Memos implementing key technology committees 
where Leon Fuerth came in a position, through his seat on the Principals 
Committee, to learn all the secrets of the hightech and to control the security 
of the classified U.S. research labs. Under Fuerth’s careful supervision, a so-
called Chinese spy obtained top U.S. nuclear military secrets. Leon Fuerth 
and Sandy Berger covered this up for over a year until the press got wind of it 
and the nuclear espionage scandal became the top treason news of the 
1990s. 
  
The financial contacts with China, Iraq, Libya etc. for the payoff were handled 
by the alleged successor organization of BCCI, AIG insurance group under 
Maurice ”Hank” Greenberg. Greenberg is a Jewish right-winger and strong 
supporter of the ADL. His business success is built on very close contacts to 
the intelligence community, building China’s insurance industry and, allegedly, 
large-scale global money laundering. Subsidiaries of his empire on the British 
channel islands, in Greenwich, Connecticut, on the Carribean islands and the 
Philippines juggled this money. A key AIG operative of this was Andrew Gitlin 
of Stamford, Connecticut. Unbeknownst to me, he infiltrated my internet 
company for Gallerize.com when I and my former partner Armenis wanted to 
publish details of the Libya, Iraq, China and Philippines money connections of 
Leon Fuerth, Clinton and AIG. Gitlin was apparently close to the Silverstein 
family because he brought with him as another small shareholder and friend – 
a son of Larry Silverstein. A joint friend of theirs was John Stevens of 
Connecticut, a friend of Armenis and the son or grandson of a former head of 
the RNP. This connection was in Stamford/Greenwich, Connecticut, the same 
area where Daddy Bush grew up. I call this the domestic Connecticut terror 
cell behind 9-11 and with ties to the Enron scandal. 
  
Technically, the most complicated part of Operation 9-11 was the look-like 
”plane” that hit WTC2 (south tower) on 9-11-1 at 9:03 a.m. Based on a 
general assessment, German and French intelligence sources estimate that 
the preparation time for 9-11 was several years. The U.S. government, from 
its perspective, places the start of the terror operation around 1995. The Uday 
Hussein letter to Vladimir Putin from June 9th, 2000 already is based on a far 
advanced planning; the very attack day was already known. 
  
The logical suspicion for the 9-11 mastermind is the same who enabled the 
Chinese nuclear espionage, Leon S. Fuerth. Only he would have had the 
intelligence, contacts and perfidious criminality  - such as doing it behind the 
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back of his boss Al Gore -  to pull such an operation together. There is no 
other feasible choice in the entire Clinton personnel. 
  
The whatever struck south tower was not a hijacked Boeing 767-222. Only 
exotic weapons systems can glide through steel columns without colliding with 
them. This strange ghost-like behavior is known only from hologram missiles 
where the outer covering is a deceptive layer of light to hide a cruise missile 
riding inside. 
  
Fuerth had the U.S. military develop such weapons since 1997 in ”Project 
Ghost Gun”, based on older exotic scalar and holographic hightech. There is 
no other known weapons system, however exotic, that could behave like the 
plane at south tower did on 9-11-1. Therefore I conclude that Leon Fuerth was 
behind masterminding the 9-11 terror attacks, a treacherous yet ingenious 
stooge professor for the Bush-Clinton crime syndicate. 
  
REFERENCES: 
http://www.cloakanddagger.ca/media/Grossmann/ 
Planning%209_11/106%20Planning%209-11.htm  
http://www.cloakanddagger.ca/media/Grossmann/ 
911%20Dogma/021%20Probl911Dogma.htm
http://www.themedianews.com/DAGGER/Stefan/ 
September.Terrorists.htm
http://www.cloakanddagger.ca/media/Grossmann/ 
Questionnaire/081%20Questionnaire.htm
http://www.scoreboard-canada.com/aig/  
http://www.geocities.com/Athens/Crete/3450/adfa.html  
http://www.freerepublic.com/focus/search?m=all;o=time;s=AIG  
http://www2.law.temple.edu/files/ESQ_fall02.pdf  
http://www.cheniere.org (Tom Bearden web site) 
Background material and further references are in my downloadable e-book 
”T MINUS 9-11, An Insiders’ Attack On America” for sale at 
www.gallerize.com. 
  
  

IV. THE FALSE JEW CONNECTION: 
  
NAMES: Leon Fuerth, Andrew Gitlin, Larry Silverstein, Maurice Hank 
Greenberg, Henry Kissinger, Rahm Emanuel, Ariel Sharon 
  
THEORY: People like Fuerth, Emanuel (U.S. Mossad chief in the Clinton era 
and White House Rasputin), Kissinger, Gitlin, Greenberg, Silverstein, Sharon 
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are reputedly leaders of a homosexual satanic underground (at least its 
relatively small Jewish division, overshadowed by its much larger non-Jewish 
division). They are false Jews. From their midst allegedly came the impulse to 
assassinate the Israeli Prime Minister and peace dove Yitzhak Rabin, the 
impule to provoke the still ongoing Second Intifada in Palestine in fall 2000, 
and the re-emergence of the known serial murderer and terrorist Ariel Sharon. 
Sharon was elected Prime Minister of Israel on February 6, 2001 in a special 
election. This grouping sent several prominent members into the informal 
committee(s) that perpetrated 9-11 on America. There are multiple links to the 
second-generation Meyer Lansky crime syndicate. A note of clarification: I am 
NOT saying ”it was the Jews”, and do not quote me thus. 
  
REFERENCES: 
Background material is in my downloadable e-book ”T MINUS 9-11, An 
Insiders’ Attack On America” for sale at 
www.gallerize.com. 
Further see 
http://www.cloakanddagger.ca/media/SS/Re%20THE% 
20ASH%20WEDNESDAY%20PLOT%20Part%203%20 
by%20Sherman%20H.%20Skolnick.htm  
http://www.larouchepub.com/other/2001/2833mega_spy.html  
  
  

V. THE ENRON CONNECTION: 
  
NAMES: Marc Rich, William Jefferson Clinton, Frank Wisner, George W. 
Bush, Arthur Andersen, CIA black accounts, Carlyle Group 
  
THEORY: Decades-long theft of tax monies in the trillions of U.S. dollars has 
left U.S. public finances dangerously hollowed out and ready to collapse in the 
next storm. The Enron scandal was ready to break out in summer 2001 with 
potentially devastating consequences for the entire nation and possibly the 
world financial system. The scandal personnel largely overlaps with the key 9-
11 group, such as AIG Director Frank Wisner, son of a CIA founder, 
ambassador and Clinton drug coordinator in India and an Enron Director. This 
was merely another Bush-Clinton syndicate operation with close ties to 9-11. 
  
REFERENCES: 
www.skolnicksreport.com  
www.cloakanddagger.ca  
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VI. SUMMARY: 
  
Today, Al Gore, the true U.S. President, comes clear of any culpability for 9-
11. All the evidence that has surfaced since 9-11-1 points away from Gore 
and to the Bush family and its Clinton branch of renegade and corrupt 
Democrats. These are forces clearly separate from Al Gore since they are, 
essentially, the same forces that prevented Gore’s inauguration as the duly 
elected President of the U.S.A. 
  
The members of the networked subgroups of the Bush and Clinton families 
are suspect of the capital crime of treason. There are top-level John Doe co-
conspirators estimated at 600 to 700, further several thousand lower-level 
case-to-case co-conspirators spread over the industrialized world with a main 
focus on North America. An especially prominent role is played by the current 
Israeli government under the murderous butcher of Sabra and Shatilla, Ariel 
Sharon. 
  
The cause of the terror attacks on September 11, 2001 is a cancerous 
conspiracy inside the Republican and Democratic parties, the U.S. 
government, military and intelligence linked with a mirror conspiracy inside the 
Israeli government, military and intelligence. Key elements  - by no means all 
elements -  of this conspiracy were outlined above as the ”Florida 
Connection”, the ”Building Security Connection”, the ”China and Technology 
Connection”, the ”False Jew Connection” and the ”Enron Connection”. The 
materials even outlining this conspiracy are so large that they will fill a large 
book. The closest approximation available is my book ”T MINUS 9-11” 
referenced above (www.gallerize.com).  
  
The bin Laden family, while having close business ties to the Bush family and 
Carlyle Group, is no principal of the terror of 9-11. Osama bin Laden and al 
Qaeda were CIA patsies at best. 
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In summary, the foregoing financial information tells us that the true controllers of 
building 7 behind Larry Silverstein were CIA-affiliated politico-financiers. In July 2001, 
they were joined by Bank of America with a $383 million mortgaged bond. 
 
The mortgages depended on Silverstein’s ability to serve the 
mortgage payments from the rental income of building 7. 
 
His decision on 9-11-1 to let the fire chief „pull it” would have 
been suicidal unless Silverstein had assurances to his satisfaction 
as a seasoned real estate investor that the intentional and 
unnecessary demolition of his building 7 would not jeopardize 
his credit and mortgage. 
 
Such assurances can only be assumed if Silverstein had 
foreknowledge that the government would be reporting the 
collapse of building 7 as an accident attributable (falsely) to hot 
raging fire infernos (same false government allegation as for the 
Twin Towers, see other sections of this report). 
 
Furthermore, such assurances can only be assumed if Silverstein 
had reasonable foreknowledge that the litigation against the 
insurances is politically fixed by the CIA to ensure that the truth 
behind the treasonous mass murder of 9-11 is forever covered 
up. These assurances were given him by the controllers of his 
mortgages, in essence by certain secretive false-Jew (Hofjuden) 
wall street financiers such as Maurice R. Greenberg, Henry 
Kissinger and their murder gang. 
 
These are the terrorist principals of 9-11-1 „above the 
President”. 
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b) Silverstein’s Summer 2001 Lease Deal for the Entire WTC 
 
The gigantic lease deal that Silverstein signed with the New York Port Authority in 
summer of 2001 just weeks before 9-11-1 is hinged on the same assumptions of 
foreknowledge and control of 9-11-1 by Silverstein’s political financiers. See details 
about the lease, 
http://www.whatreallyhappened.com/silverstein.html  
(source of following information): 
 
 

Source URL on September 21, 2004: 
http://www.whatreallyhappened.com/silverstein.html  

 

WTC Owner May Make a 
Huge Profit off of 9/11 Attacks 

Deal of the Year: World Trade Center, New York, NY 

‘Weighing in at $3.2 billion, the acquisition of the 99-year leasehold of the 
World Trade Center was the largest of the year. „Notwithstanding the 
emotional difficulty of celebrating anything related to the World Trade 
Center is the fact that upon completion of its acquisition by Larry 
Silverstein, it was clearly the deal of the year for the industry, and now 
more than ever, a deal of [a] lifetime for Silverstein“ said Ken Zakin, 
managing director at Insignia/ESG.’ 

 
Six months before the attacks on the World Trade Center, the World Trade 
Center was „privatized“ by being leased to a private sector developer. The 
lease was purchased by the Silverstein Group for $3.2 billion.  

But the World Trade Towers were not the real estate plum Silverstein Group 
might have been led to believe. The towers required some $200 million in 
renovations and improvements, most of which related to removal and 
replacement of building materials declared to be health hazards in the years 
since the towers were built. Other New York developers had been driven into 
bankruptcy by the costly mandated renovations, and $200 million represented 
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an entire year’s worth of revenues from the World Trade Towers.  

The attacks on 9/11 changed the picture. Instead of renovation, Silverstein is 
rebuilding, funded by the insurance coverage on the property which 
‘fortuitously’ covered acts of terrorism. Even better, Silverstein filed TWO 
insurance claims for the maximum amount of the policy, based on the two, in 
Silverstein’s view, seperate attacks. The total potential payout is $7.1 billion, 
more than enough to build a fabulous new complex and leave a hefty profit 
for the Silverstein Group, including Larry Silverstein himself. 

As reported in The Washington Post, the insurance company, Swiss Re, has 
gone to court to argue that the 9/11 disaster was only one attack, not two and 
that therefore the insurance payout should be limited to $3.55 billion, still 
enough to rebuild the complex.  

The destruction of the World Trade Towers may make Silverstein one of the 
wealthiest men alive.  

 
Israeli magnate insured WTC retail space against terrorism

An Israeli businessman from Australia, Frank Lowy, had recently acquired 
the 99-year lease for the 425,000 square foot retail portion of World Trade 
Center before the WTC attacks of Sept. 11, reported The Jerusalem Post on 
Sept. 12. 

Lowy is chairman and founder of Westfield Holdings, and the manager of 
Westfield America Trust, which has a 57 percent stake in Westfield 
America Inc. In April 2001, Westfield America agreed to pay $400 million 
for the lease on the complex though only $133 million was paid; the rest 
was to be made in ground lease payments. 

Westfield was insured against terrorist attacks and its earnings will not be 
materially affected.  

In a statement to the Australian Stock Exchange the retail chain said that 
„investment in the retail component of the World Trade Center is fully 
insured for both capital and loss of income,“ adding „the insurance 
coverage includes acts of terrorism“. 

 

See also: 

Westfield, Silverstein and the WTC Golden Goose 
Foreign Currency Traders Profit From WTC Collapse 

The 9/11 WTC Collapses: An Audio-Video Analysis 
9/11 - An Inside Job?
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Source URL for the following information: 
http://www.prwatch.org/forum/showpost.php?p=10386&postcount=1

 
Strange lease agreements of WTC prior to 911  

 
The below language was taken form another blog, whose link is below. The article suggests 
a prior knowledge of the 911 attacks as evidenced by a series of real estate transaction 
involving the World Trade Center. Some of the players implicated are: Peter G. Petersen, 
Chair of both the Fed Reserve Bank of New York and the Council on Foreign Relations; 
Steven Schwartzman, Council on Foreign Relations; Henry Kissenger, former Sec. of State. 
There is a civil RICO lawsuit filed against George W. Bush et al., by Ellen Mariani pending 
based on the below events. 
 
On October 17, 2000, eleven months before 9/11, Blackstone Real Estate Advisors, of The 
Blackstone Group, L.P, purchased, from Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association, the 
participating mortgage secured by World Trade Center, Building 7.1 
 
April 26, 2001 the Port Authority leased the WTC for 99 years to Silverstein Properties and 
Westfield America Inc. The transaction was authorized by Port Authority Chairman Lewis M. 
Eisenberg. 
 
This transfer from the New York and New Jersey Port Authority was tantamount to the 
privatization of the WTC Complex. The official press release described it as „the richest real 
estate prize in New York City history“. The retail space underneath the complex was leased 
to Westfield America Inc.2 
 
On 24 July 2001, 6 weeks prior to 9/11 Silverstein took control of the lease of the WTC 
following the Port Authority decision on April 26. 
 
Silverstein and Frank Lowy, CEO of Westefield Inc. took control of the 10.6 million-square-
foot WTC complex. „Lowy leased the shopping concourse called the Mall at the WTC, which 
comprised about 427,000 square feet of retail space.“3 
 
Explicitly included in the agreement was that Silverstein and Westfield „were given the right 
to rebuild the structures if they were destroyed“. 4 
 
In this transaction, Silverstein signed a rental contract for the WTC over 99 years amounting 
to 3,2 billion dollars in installments to be made to the Port Authority: 800 million covered 
fees including a down payment of the order of 100 million dollars. Of this amount, Silverstein 
put in 14 million dollars of his own money. The annual payment on the lease was of the 
order of 115 million dollars.5 
 
In the wake of the WTC attacks, Silverstein is suing for some $7.1 billion in insurance 
money, double the amount of the value of the 99 year lease.6  
 
Silverstein Properties Inc. is a Manhattan-based real estate development and investment 
firm that owns, manages, and has developed more than 20 million square feet of office, 
residential and retail space. 
 
Westfield America, Inc. is controlled by the Australian based Lowy family with major 
interests in shopping centres. The CEO of Westfield is Australian businessman Frank Lowy. 
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The Blackstone Group, a private investment bank with offices in New York and London, was 
founded in 1985 by its Chairman, Peter G. Peterson, and its President and CEO, Stephen A. 
Schwarzman.  
 
in addition to its Real Estate activities, the Blackstone Group’s core businesses include 
Mergers and Acquisitions Advisory, Restructuring and Reorganization Advisory, Private 
Equity Investing, Private Mezzanine Investing, and Liquid Alternative Asset Investing.7 
 
Blackstone chairman Peter G. Petersen is also Chairman of the Federal Reserve Bank of New 
York and Chairman of the board of the Council on Foreign Relations (CFR). His partner 
Stephen A. Schwarzman is also a member of the Council on Foreign Relations (CFR). Peter 
G. Petersen is also named in widow Ellen Mariani’s widow civil RICO suit filed against. 
George W. Bush, et al. 
 
Kissinger McLarty Associates, which is Henry Kissinger’s consulting firm has a „strategic 
alliance“ with the Blackstone Group „which is designed to help provide financial advisory 
services to corporations seeking high-level strategic advice.“ (http://www.blackstone.com/) . 
 
http://www.talkaboutgovernment.com/group/alt.politics.youth/messages/15925.html
 

* * * 
 
For details on the insurance claims pertaining to the WTC, see Centre for Research on 
Globalization, The WTC Towers Collapse: an Enormous Insurance Scam (selected articles), 
http://www.globalresearch.ca/articles/WTC312A.html
19 December 2003 
 
NOTES 
1 Business Wire, 17 October 2000 
2. See Paul Goldberger in The New Yorker, May 20, 2002. 
3 C. Bollyn, „Did Rupert Murdoch Have Prior Knowledge of 9/11?“ Centre for 
Research on Globalization, globalresearch.ca, 20 October 2003. 
4. Goldberger, op cit 
5, Associated Press, 22 November 2003. See also Die Welt, Berlin, Oct 11, 2001. 
6. Alison Frankel, The American Lawyer, Sept 3 2002 
7 Business Wire, op cit 
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c) Silverstein’s Multi-Billion Dollar Insurance Claims 
 
 

Source for the following information: 
Wsj.com (Real Estate Journal) 

 
 
Silverstein Jury’s Decision 
Favors the Insurers 

By DEAN STARKMAN and ALEX FRANGOS 
Staff Reporters of The Wall Street Journal  

From The Wall Street Journal Online

April 29, 2004 -- NEW YORK -- It’s time for Plan B at Ground Zero. 

Larry Silverstein, the real-estate developer who holds the lease on the World Trade Center, lost a major chunk of 
his legal bid to double the $3.55 billion face value of the insurance coverage for the twin towers. That has thrown 
the rebuilding process into confusion and signals the possible end of Mr. Silverstein’s role as lead developer of the 
highly symbolic site. 

In U.S. District Court in Manhattan yesterday, the jury delivered an incomplete and split decision, but one that 
heavily favored the insurers. The panel found that eight of the 12 insurance companies -- constituting more than $1 
billion of coverage -- were governed by an insurance form that defines the attacks on the World Trade Center as a 
single event, or „occurrence.“ And that means a single payout. 

Mr. Silverstein had argued that all the insurers committed to forms under which the attacks of Sept. 11, 2001, 
would be regarded as two occurrences that entitled him to a double payment. But the jury decided in Mr. 
Silverstein’s favor for just three of the insurers, representing only a sliver of the total policy amount, about $176 
million. 

The 11-member panel was unable to reach a verdict on the status of the single largest insurer, Swiss Reinsurance 
Co., and will continue to deliberate on that portion of the case Monday. In a note to the judge yesterday, the jury 
wrote, „We have focused our efforts on this one insurer for the majority of the last five days with great diligence, 
and in spite of our best efforts have not been able to reach a unanimous decision.“ Swiss Re’s share of the policy is 
$877.5 million. 

Judge Michael B. Mukasey said he would accept a partial verdict and sent the panel back to deliberate on Swiss Re. 
Juror No. 12, Tonya Powers, 32 years old, was dismissed from the trial following yesterday’s partial decision. She 
requested to leave for personal reasons, and both sides agreed to the dismissal. 

Whatever the final outcome of the case, yesterday’s verdict leaves the 72-year-old Mr. Silverstein far short of the 
more than $9 billion he would need to rebuild the World Trade Center complex based on a plan chosen in a high-
profile international competition. Separate from this case, Mr. Silverstein still could achieve a double payment from 
a group of insurers representing close to $1 billion in coverage. That will be determined in a subsequent trial. 

Despite the unresolved nature of yesterday’s decision, officials at the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey, 
which owns the 16-acre site, have already decided to try to remove Mr. Silverstein from his position of primacy as 
the Trade Center’s developer, according to people familiar with the situation. 

The Port Authority, which retained broad centers under the 99-year office leases sold to Mr. Silverstein and his 
investor group in July 2001, is considering allowing him to keep, at most, his spot as developer of the iconic 
Freedom Tower, a 1,776-foot tower scheduled to start construction later this summer, the people said. 

Mr. Silverstein could even be forced to share his role -- and his potential profits -- in the Freedom Tower. The Port 
Authority plans to initiate discussions with Mr. Silverstein about his status within days of the final verdict, these 
people said. 
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Jacques DuBois, head of Swiss Re’s U.S. unit, declined to comment. Lawyers for the victorious insurers said they 
were pleased. „We are obviously gratified,“ said Ken Erickson, a lawyer for a group of London insurers that 
represented $680 million of the coverage. 

„From a financial perspective, I don’t think we’re looking at a major impact on the U.S. insurance industry,“ said 
Robert Hartwig, chief economist for the Insurance Information Institute, an industry trade group. „We’ll have to see 
how the Swiss Re part plays out.“ 

Howard Rubenstein, a spokesman for Mr. Silverstein, said: „This is a partial verdict. We are awaiting the decision 
with respect to Swiss Re, the largest insurer in the World Trade Center coverage. We will have no further comment 
while the jury continues to deliberate.“ 

A spokesman for the Port Authority declined to comment, citing the incomplete nature of the decision. 

Thus far, Ground Zero planning has been driven by Mr. Silverstein’s lease with the Port Authority, which requires 
him to „restore“ 10 million square feet of office space and make lease payments of $120 million a year. The office 
space was to come in the form of five skyscrapers that Mr. Silverstein promised to complete for the site by 2013. 
The buildings, plus related infrastructure are estimated to cost more than $9 billion. Of the total potential insurance 
payout, $1.3 billion has already been spent on lawyers fees, financing buyouts, and Mr. Silverstein’s fees and the 
return of his equity. 

The partial verdict leaves enough at least to build the 2.2-million-square-foot Freedom Tower. One scenario would 
have the Port Authority renegotiate its lease with Mr. Silverstein to allow him to retain control of the Freedom Tower 
and take back the centers to the rest of the site. Designed to help fill the gap in New York’s skyline created when 
the twin towers fell, the tower has a projected cost of $1.5 billion. 

But with Mr. Silverstein now almost certainly unable to fulfill the terms of his lease, the requirement for so much 
office space disappears. The Port Authority, which has already bought back the retail and hotel centers to the site, 
will now consider taking back office centers, as well, people familiar with the situation said. Undecided so far is 
whether to hire a single master developer or separate companies to develop individual sites. 

What is clear is that the Port Authority has been quietly planning for a post-Silverstein Ground Zero for months and 
will now consider a mix of uses for the site, potentially making way for apartments, hotels and more retail outlets. 
So the jury’s finding in part moves those plans along, with profound implications for Lower Manhattan, driving the 
area’s transformation away from its storied past as a major financial center. 

The Port Authority has already begun making plans for replacing the income stream, say people familiar with the 
situation. A less-dense, mixed-use project could be built within the site plan chosen last year of Studio Daniel 
Libeskind and without tampering with the memorial designed by Michael Arad and Peter Walker, the people said. 

With Mr. Silverstein’s position at Ground Zero weakened, the spotlight also shifts to the Port Authority’s political 
patrons, New York’s Gov. George E. Pataki and New Jersey’s Gov. James E. McGreevey, who jointly control the 
agency’s board. 

Gov. Pataki, in particular, has tethered his political reputation to progress at Ground Zero, repeatedly promising 
that construction on the Freedom Tower would be under way by late this summer, around the time of the 
Republican National Convention in New York in September. 

--Staff reporters Ryan Chittum and Theodore J. Francis and Janet Morrissey of Dow Jones Newswires contributed to this article. 

 
 
Summary: It’s history’s largest insurance scam, with the CIA, Wall Street 
insiders and circles in the Bush administration including the Bush family 
involved. 
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